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PART I

Iltem 1. Business.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardlimg statements regarding our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects. #fg@uch as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “@ns,”
“believes,” “seeks,” “estimates” and similar exprsfons or variations of such words are intendeddentify
forward-looking statements, but are not the exclusive mefidentifying forward-looking statements in tAisnual
Report. Additionally, statements concerning futtnaters such as the development or regulatory agdrof new
products, enhancements of existing products omteldigies, revenue and expense levels and othemséatt:
regarding matters that are not historical are fomgdadooking statements.

HNTH

”ou

Although forward-looking statements in this AnnRabort reflect the good faith judgment of our masragnt,
such statements can only be based on facts amt$amirrently known by us. Consequently, forwarmkling
statements are inherently subject to risks and tat#ies and actual results and outcomes may diffaterially
from the results and outcomes discussed in or ipatied by the forwar-looking statements. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences in resaid outcomes include without limitation those désad under the
heading “Risk Factors” below, as well as those dissed elsewhere in this Annual Report. Readersr@ed not to
place undue reliance on these forw-looking statements, which speak only as of the dathis Annual Report. We
undertake no obligation to revise or update anyvind-looking statements in order to reflect anyree
circumstance that may arise after the date of #riaual Report. Readers are urged to carefully nenaed consider
the various disclosures made in this Annual Repanich attempt to advise interested parties ofritles and factor:
that may affect our business, financial conditi@sults of operations and prospects.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company dedicated tdetielopment and commercialization of recombinant
human enzymes for the drug delivery, palliativeecancology, and infertility markets. Our operatidn date have
been limited to organizing and staffing the Compamguiring, developing and securing its technolagg
undertaking product development for our existingducts and for a limited number of product candidatn June
2005, we launched our first product, Cumul@se product used for in vitro fertilization, andnsitioned from a
development-stage organization to a commerciatyenti

Our predecessor company, DeliaTroph Pharmaceutioglswas incorporated in California in 1998. Our
principal offices and research facilities are leckat 11588 Sorrento Valley Road, Suite 17, Sagdi€alifornia
92121. Our telephone number is (858) 794-8889 amaanail address isfo@halozyme.conidditional
information about Halozyme can be found on our itepatwww.halozyme.conand in our periodic and current
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdasion (“SEC”). Copies of our current and periodiports filed
with the SEC are available at the SEC Public RefszdRoom at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, .2@549,
and online atvww.sec.goand our website atww.halozyme.com.

Technology

Our technology is based on recombinant human PH20RH20), a human synthetic version of hyaluronéddas
that degrades hyaluronic acid, a space-filling;ligel substance that is a major component of tisshiughout the
body, such as skin and cartilage. The PH20 enzgrasnaturally occurring enzyme that digests hyaliaracid to
temporarily break down the gel, thereby facilitgtithe penetration and diffusion of other drugs tmds that are
injected under the skin or in the muscle. It alsgrddes the cumulus matrix surrounding oocytess{efggilitating
in vitro fertilization (IVF).

Bovine and ovine-derived hyaluronidases have beed in multiple therapeutic areas, including imovit
fertilization and ophthalmology, where an FDA-appd bovine version was used as a drug deliverytagen
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enhance dispersion of local anesthesia for overeads. Despite the multiple potential therapeytigliaations for
hyaluronidase, there are problems with existing goténtial animal-derived product offerings, inchugt

* Impurity: Most such commercial enzyme preparations areccentracts from cattle testes and are typically
1-10% pure

» Prion disease Because most commercial enzyme preparationsrdyelel 0% pure, they may contain whi
blood cellular components (leukocytes) that areadatquately flushed from the testes organ in the
manufacturing process. White blood cells (leukogyteave been implicated in the development of
neurodegenerative disorders associated with imfiestprion diseas!

« Immunogenicity Hyaluronidases can also be found in bacterizghleg certain venoms, and marine
organisms. Such preparations, in addition to bogimeé ovine, are non-human, and may elicit immune
reactions, possess endotoxin, or have some otithe gefects as slaughterhouse derivati

As an alternative to the existing anintirived drugs, our proprietary technology, as evigel by our exclusi\
license with the University of Connecticut of thetgnt covering the DNA sequence that encodes human
hyaluronidase, may both expand existing marketscaeate new ones. Gaps in existing hyaluronidafegiofis may
create demand for our solution, and provide newketaspportunities. Our objective is to apply oungucts and
products under development to key markets in nleltiperapeutic areas.

Strategy

Our objective is to develop and commercialize anst Enzyme, recombinant human hyaluronidase (rH2{BH
as a medical device, drug enhancement agent, argptutic drug. Key aspects of our corporate gjyateclude the
following:

« Continue to commercialize Cumulase through ourridistors;

« Begin to commercialize Hylenex through our parti

« Complete Phase I/lla trials for our oncology depetental product, Chemophe®;

« Continue to conduct proof of concept clinical sagdwith our Enhanz™ Technology; ant
« Continue to seek partnerships for our Enhanze Taoby;

« Develop other ear-stage opportunities in our pipelir

Marketed Product and Product Development Programs

We have one marketed product and multiple prodacticlates targeting several indications in vargtages ¢
development. The following table summarizes oud lelinical product and pipeline candidates:

Product Indication (Brief Description) Development Status

Cumulase In vitro fertilization Marketed

Hylenex Agent for drug and fluid infusio NDA Approved

Chemophas Chemoadjuvant for superficial bladder can Phase I/lle

Enhanze Technolog Agent for enhanced drug delive Phase

HTI-101 Inflammation, oncolog Pre-Clinical
Cumulase

Cumulase is aex vivo(used outside of the body) formulation of rHUPH&0eplace the bovine enzyme
currently used for the preparation of oocytes (gggser to IVF during the process of intracytoplasmperm
injection (ICSI), in which the enzyme is an essartomponent. The enzyme strips away the hyaluraciit that
surrounds the oocyte. This allows the cliniciathten perform the ICSI procedure, injecting the spirto the
oocyte. The FDA considers hyaluronidase IVF prosltetbe medical devices subject to 510(k) appraudiwe
filed our 510(k) application during September 2004 received a CE (European Conformity) Mark forCilase




Table of Contents

in December 2004, which allows the Company to matkenulase in the European Union. We received FDA
clearance in April 2005. We launched Cumulase énBEbropean Union and in the United States in JO0& 2Ve
believe the total ICSI market consisted of an estgd 500,000 intracytoplasmic sperm injection cyelerldwide ir
2005 (Source: CDC, 2001; ESHRE, 2002).

Hylenex

Hylenex is a human recombinant formulation of rH@RHo facilitate the absorption and dispersiontbto
injected drugs or fluids. When injected under tkia sr in the muscle, hyaluronidase can digesthtysuronic acid
gel, allowing for temporarily enhanced penetratimil dispersion of other injected drugs or fluide fled a New
Drug Application (NDA) in March 2005 and we receaivapproval of our Hylenex NDA in December 2005.

Enzymatically Augmented Subcutaneous Infusion (EABYlenex facilitates subcutaneous delivery ofd&ii
up to one liter without the need for intravenousess, a procedure known as EASI. Importantly, Efasfluid
replacement in terminal patients may be achievei hivhited or no need for nursing assistance. Qvémillion
subcutaneous fluid infusions are performed per yéidr hospice patients alone (Source: Company esésbased
on National Hospice and Palliative Care Organizatiata, 2001). In addition, over 500 million infusibags are
utilized annually in the United States, some ofaekhiould potentially convert to EASI using Hylengkying rise to
additional market potential (Source: B. Braun, 2003

INFUSE-LR Study: During January 2006, we completed the Increasad Btilizing Subcutaneously-Enabled
Lactated Ringer’s clinical trial, or INFUSE-LR stydvhich was designed to determine the subcutaneous
(Sub-Q) infusion flow rate of Lactated Ringer’swgn with and without Hylenex, determine the Suln@sion
flow rate dose response to Hylenex over one orfleragnitude of dose, and assess safety and tdligraibhis
prospective, double-blind, randomized, placebo+odied, within-subject, dose-comparison study derbb4
volunteer subjects who received Subr@isions simultaneously in both upper arms throRglgauge catheters. K
results from the study included:

« The use of Hylenex compared to placebo precedihmg@@unfusion, under gravity flow, to accelerate thexfl
rate was assessed. Hylenex accelerated flow vptacsbo in every subject studied, and by an overalin
ratio of approximately four-fold. The overall meffmw rate for Sub-Q infusion with Hylenex was 464 fnr
versus 118 mL/hr with placebo (p<0.00C

» The faster flow rates did not result in an increiasedema. A total of 94% of subjects had modeoatevere
arm edema with placebo compared to 17% with Hylpex 0.0001)

« In the study, there were no serious or severe adwarents (AE). Based on the AE profile, Hylenes at
least as well tolerated as place

INFUSE-Morphine Study:During October 2006, we completed the Increaded Etilizing Subcutaneously-
Enabled Morphine clinical trial, or INFUSE-Morphistudy, which was designed to determine the tinradgimal
blood levels of morphine after subcutaneous adinatisn with and without Hylenex, to determine thee to
maximal blood levels after intravenous administmatbf morphine, and to assess safety and toletabilhis
prospective, double-blind, randomized, placebo+oieid, within-subject, dose-comparison study derbll2
evaluable patients who received Sub-Q infusiong. iésults from the study included:

» The primary endpoint hypothesis was achieved byaestnating a statistically significant acceleratiorthe
average time to maximal plasma concentration (Tro&r)orphine. Tmax was reduced from 13.8 minutes
when injected subcutaneously with the saline pladela Tmax of 9.2 minutes when injected with Hygbene
33% reduction in the time to maximal plasma coneion (p<0.05)

e SC administration of morphine + Hylenex providethtarug exposure (4-hour AUC) of morphine and its
active metabolite that was at least comparabl® tmorphine administration, as calculated basechen t
sampling time points for measuring absorpt

» Morphine plus Hylenex appeared to be safe andteieliated. The most commonly reported adverse svent
were mild injection site redness, rash, swellimg] @ching. However, no Hylenex-related toxicitysva
apparent based on a comparison of adverse ever€fmjections with rHuPH20 vs. saline place
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Chemophase

Chemophase, our lead oncology product candidada isvestigative chemoadjuvant designed to enhtrece
transport of chemotherapeutic agents to tumorgissicreasing diffusion in tissues without affegtirascular
permeability. Chemophase is being developed fogrm@t use in the treatment of patients with vasisalid tumor
malignancies. Many solid tumor types (e.g., colmeast, prostate) accumulate hyaluronic acid, icrgat barrier to
the effective penetration of current or future clémrapeutics. Previous clinical trials of bovibel() PH20 in
patients showed some promise in enhancing chenagtheegimens using adjunctive systemic hyalurordas
previously chemo-refractory patients.

Furthermore, we have observed significant reduaticmmor interstitial fluid pressure following the
administration of rHUPH20 in solid tumors growmiice. Tumor interstitial pressure is widely belidwe be an
important factor limiting the access of cytostaggimens to solid tumors. By digesting the hyalic@cid gel,
Chemophase may reduce interstitial pressure ituther and promote more effective delivery of chemeoapy
throughout the tumor, as it does under the skihéncase of Hylenex. This could potentially leadhtreased patie
survival and extend the product lifecycles of mangnmonly used chemotherapeutic agents.

As we continue development of an intravenous foatioh of rHUPH20, we hope to realize time and cost
savings by leveraging our current manufacturingess and toxicology package to support a clinioag@mm for a
local oncology application. During June 2005, wbrsiited an investigational new drug applicatioNQI”) in
order to begin clinical testing of our Chemophasmipct candidate in superficial bladder cancer.rééeived
authorization to initiate clinical testing of Chepiase in August 2005, and we commenced patientireiert in out
initial clinical protocol under this IND in Octob@005. In March 2006, we completed enrollment in ou
Chemophase Phase | clinical trial. In April 200@& @ommenced patient enrollment in our ChemophaasePtilla
clinical trial.

Each year there are approximately 63,000 new azsaasnary bladder cancer in the United States (Sau
American Cancer Society, 2005). Approximately 700hese new cases are “superficial” bladder ca(@eurce:
AUA Bladder Cancer Guidelines Panel, 1999). Theesapproximately 500,000 prevalent cases of urib&agder
cancer (Source: NCI SEER Cancer Statistics Re\2®@?2) in the United States. Approximately 30% efhted
patients have a recurrence within 12 months (So@oathwest Oncology Group Study, 1995).

Enhanze Technology

Enhanze™ Technology, a proprietary drug enhancement systnglwHalozyme's first approved enzyme,
rHUPH20, is the company’s broader technology opmity that can potentially lead to proprietary parships with
other pharmaceutical companies. When co-formulaftitother injectable drugs, Enhanze Technology axtyas a
“molecular machete” to facilitate the penetrationl @ispersion of these drugs by temporarily opefimg channels
under the skin. Molecules as large as 200 nanometay pass freely through the perforated extraleelaatrix,
which recovers its normal density within approxiglat?4 hours, leading to a drug delivery platformiet does not
permanently alter the architecture of the skin.oagine is seeking partnerships with pharmaceutimapanies that
market drugs requiring or benefiting from injectigia the subcutaneous or intramuscular routescitiald benefit
from this technology. In December 2006, we signedfiost Enhanze Technology partnership with F. filatnn-

La Roche Ltd and Hoffmann-La Roche, Inc.

Roche Agreement

In December 2006, we entered into a license ardhlmmation agreement with Roche for Enhanze Teduyol
Under the terms of the agreement, Roche will okdiaivorldwide, exclusive license to develop and caraialize
product combinations of rHUPH20, our proprietargorbinant human hyaluronidase, and up to thirteechB
target compounds resulting from the collaborat®oache paid us $20 million as an initial upfront peant for the
application of rHUPHZ20 to three pre-defined Roclutogic targets. Pending the successful completiom series of
clinical, regulatory, and sales events, Roche nagyys further milestones which could potentiallgaie a value of
up to $111 million. In addition, Roche may pay agalties on potential product sales for these fliste targets.
Over the next ten years, Roche will also have fit®n to exclusively develop and commercialize rH@P with an
additional ten targets to be identified by Rocheyjled that Roche will be
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obligated to pay continuing exclusivity maintenafees to us in order to maintain its exclusive digwment rights
for these targets. For each of the additional aegets, Roche may pay us further upfront and noilespayments of
up to $47 million per target as well as royaltiespotential product sales for each of these addititen targets.
Additionally, Roche will obtain access to our exjsr in developing and applying rHUPH20 to Rochigdts. In
addition, on December 5, 2006, an affiliate of Roplirchased 3,385,000 shares of common stock faggregate
of approximately $11.1 million.

Sales and Marketing
Cumulase

Our sales and marketing strategy in the IVF mackesists of a multi-channel approach that targatiepts,
clinicians, suppliers, and regulators. We are culyeseeking to raise public awareness of the otimiek of using
animal-derived products in IVF applications amomnduistry professionals and the general public thnadigect
contact with target audiences, advertising in tjadenals, presentations and booths at conferesmedrade shows,
mass mailings, Web initiatives, and brand-buildéfiprts such as press releases and other pubditaes efforts.
Direct contact could include communicating with kevocacy groups, meeting with regulatory offigialsd
attending specialty conferences.

One of the highest impact target audiences is tivges/ for Assisted Reproductive Technology (SARAhjch
is the leading organization of professionals deditdo the practice of assisted reproductive teldyies in the
United States. The organization includes over 3@étyers, which represents over 95% of the IVF diiricthe
nation, and sponsors a highly-attended annual cemée and exhibitor program. Likewise, the Europgaciety of
Human Reproduction and Embryology (ESHRE) is tlaelileg non-profit organization for IVF in Europe aaido
sponsors an annual meeting. We plan on using effiaad safety data to recruit key thought leadeds a
practitioners from this organization to help promtite use of Cumulase over existing preparations.

There are approximately eight known suppliers df Pagents and media, including micromanipulatieuia
that contain hyaluronidase preparations. All othsuppliers sell animal-derived enzymes, and reagfit from
having the opportunity to supply clinics with a hamrecombinant hyaluronidase. We are seeking &bksih non-
exclusive distribution agreements with a subséhes$e suppliers to serve the worldwide marketplée=have
signed worldwide distribution agreements with Madi@\S (MediCult), a Denmarkased distributor with strengt
in the European Union (“EU”) market and MidAtlanfitagnostics, Inc. (MidAtlantic), a New Jersey-bdse
distributor with strengths in the United States ketirThese agreements are non-exclusive distrib@gveements,
having fiveyear terms with renewal options for an additiomad br three years, and granting each of our distoits
the right to purchase Cumulase from us and resillend users. During 2006, sales to MediCultlierEU were
approximately $220,000 and sales to MidAtlanticevapproximately $122,000, of which approximately $80
was to the EU.

Hylenex

The sales and marketing strategy for Hylenex ctssisbuilding a strong clinical foundation withgie
marketing trials. Post-marketing clinical trial® amgoing to explore the potential of Hylenex wasiety of
situations, since limited or no data with Hylenaisein most situations in which our partner wilarket it. Clinical
trials have inherent risk, and it is possible thait all trials will meet their endpoints. Exampt#ghe trials include
the completed INFUSE-LR study and the recently deted INFUSE-Morphine study, which is designed to
determine the time to maximal blood levels of mamphafter subcutaneous administration with and evith
Hylenex, maximal blood levels after intravenous adstration of morphine, and to assess safety aledability. In
addition, we plan to educate clinicians about thptial benefits of Hylenex by engaging key opmieaders and
enrolling clinical Centers of Excellence.

Baxter Agreements

In February 2007, we amended certain agreemernitsBaitter for Hylenex and entered into a new agregme
for kits and co-formulations with rHUPH20. Undee tterms of these agreements, Baxter paid us aal inftfront
payment of $10 million and, pending the successfuhpletion of a series of regulatory and sales sy&uaxter
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may make milestone payments which could potentiaiich a value of up to $25 million. In additiorax@er will
pay royalties on the sales of products covered ntgeagreements. Baxter prepaid $1 million of ¢hegyalties in
connection with the execution of the agreementsBmder will be obligated to prepay $9 million afditional
royalties on or prior to January 1, 2009. Baxtdt also now assume all development, manufacturtigical,
regulatory, sales and marketing costs of the prsdemvered by the agreements. We will continuesfiply Baxter
with the active pharmaceutical ingredient, and Baxtill fill and finish Hylenex and hold it for sskequent
distribution. Baxter will obtain a worldwide, exsive license to develop and commercialize prodaothinations
of rHUPH20, our proprietary recombinant human hyatidase, with Baxter hydration fluids and generizall
molecule drugs (with the exception of combinatiwiith (i) bisphosphonates, as well as (ii) cytostaind cytotoxic
chemotherapeutic agents, the rights to which haes betained by us). Additionally, Baxter will papyalties on th
sales, if any, of the products that result fromdbBaboration. In addition, on February 13, 2087 affiliate of
Baxter purchased 2,070,394 shares of Halozyme’'srammstock for an aggregate of $20 million.

Competition
Cumulase

A key clinical selling point for Cumulase is thaimay eliminate the risk of animal pathogen trarssioin and
toxicity inherent in slaughterhouse preparatioriee Tompeting enzymes are of animal origin, creadimg
opportunity for Halozyme to enter the market witteaombinant human enzyme alternative. The lealdifg
suppliers are CooperSurgical, Irvine Scientifiocd @ook Ob/Gyn (all three of these companies prodosene
products) in the US, and MediCult (ovine product)l &itrolife (bovine product) outside the US. Cuirmg is price:
at a premium to the animal-derived products solthiege leading IVF suppliers, which may make market
penetration difficult.

Hylenex

Other manufacturers have FDA approved productaderas spreading agents, including ISTA Pharmaizdsi
Inc. (“ISTA”), with an ovine (ram) hyaluronidasejtkase®, Amphastar Pharmaceuticals, Inc., with a bovingl)b
hyaluronidase, Amphada®¢, and Primapharm, Inc. also with a bovine hyalutase, Hydas® . The FDA has
determined that Amphadase, Hydase, Hylenex andaétare distinct new chemical entities and herfoedafd five
years of market exclusivity. The five year marketlasivity precludes identical new chemical enpitpducts frorr
being marketed for a period of five years. As eaicthese products are established as distincthereifit new
chemical entities the marketing exclusivity grantdees not prohibit the marketing of the produatsaddition, som
commercial pharmacies now compound hyaluronidaspapations for institutions and physicians. Howetlezre
are some concerns with using a compounded steabupt. Compounded preparations are not FDA-approve
products. Some compounding pharmacies do nottesy ®atch of product for drug concentration, $itgriand lacl
of pyrogens. In addition, we anticipate that Hybeméll be priced at a significant premium to thdraal-derived
hyaluronidases currently in the marketplace. Thitcgpated price premium may slow market adoptibhlyplenex
and make market penetration difficult.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Patents and other proprietary rights are essdnt@lr business. Our success will depend in padusrability
to obtain patent protection for our inventionspteserve our trade secrets and to operate withénirging the
proprietary rights of third parties. Our strategya actively pursue patent protection in the UhBates and certain
foreign jurisdictions for technology that we beketo be proprietary and that offers a potential petitive
advantage for our inventions. Our patent portfoldudes six issued patents and a number of perpiitent
applications. Our technology is primarily basedaorexclusive license with the University of Conimagtof the
patent covering the DNA sequence that encodes hinyeloronidase. This patent expires in 2015. Weehelour
patent position surrounding recombinant human hgaidases and their methods of manufacture presevasrier
to entry for potential competitors looking to w#ithese hyaluronidases.

In addition to patents, we rely on trade secretsmoprietary know-how. We seek protection of thigade
secrets and proprietary know-how, in part, throaghfidentiality and proprietary information agreertse Our
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policy is to require our employees, directors, citants and advisors, outside scientific collabarsmand sponsored
researchers, other advisors and other individuadseatities to execute confidentiality agreemepisnithe start of
employment, consulting or other contractual refahtps with us. These agreements provide thabalfigential
information developed or made known to the indigildor entity during the course of the relationskifo be kept
confidential and not disclosed to third partieseptdn specific circumstances. In the case of eyg#e and some
other parties, the agreements provide that allritisas conceived by the individual will be our exglve property.
Despite the use of these agreements and our effopt®tect our intellectual property, there willvays be a risk for
unauthorized use or disclosure of information. Remnore, our trade secrets may otherwise becomerktm or be
independently developed by, our competitors.

We also file trademark applications to protectrihenes of our products. These applications may abtma to
registration and may be challenged by third parilés are pursuing trademark protection in a nunobelifferent
countries around the world.

Development and Manufacturing

We have signed a commercial supply agreement wittl Bioservices, Inc. (“Avid”), a contract manufacing
organization, to produce bulk recombinant enzynoelpet for clinical and commercial use. Avid will m&acture
the active pharmaceutical ingredient under comrmaégood manufacturing practices for commercialescal
production and will provide support for chemistnyanufacturing and controls sections for any FDAutatpry
filings. We have not established and may not be abkstablish arrangements with additional manufacs for
these ingredients or products should the existiqpgpkes become unavailable or in the event thatAsiunable to
adequately perform its responsibilities. Difficekiin our relationship with Avid or delays or imtgstions in Avid’'s
supply of its requirements could limit or stopatsility to provide sufficient quantities of our ghacts, on a timely
basis, for clinical trials and commercial salesjollwould have a material adverse effect on ouimass and
financial condition.

In the event that any of our product candidatesuaesl in clinical trials or receive the necessagutatory
approval for commercialization, we rely on thirdtes to prepare, package and fill and finish thedpcts prior to
their distribution. If we are unable to locate thparties to perform these functions on termsahatconomically
acceptable to us, the progress of clinical trialsld be delayed or even suspended and the comnimatian of
approved product candidates could be delayed @epted. We currently utilize a third party to fihd finish
Cumulase. We also utilize Baxter Pharmaceuticalt®wois (BPS), a subsidiary of Baxter HealthcarepGaation, to
fill and finish Hylenex. Baxter has only limited@arience manufacturing Hylenex batches and weaelys ability
to successfully manufacture Hylenex batches acegrii product specifications. Any delays or intgtions in
Baxter’s ability to manufacture Hylenex batcheslddimit its ability to provide sufficient quantés of our Hylenex
product, on a timely basis, for commercial saldsictvwould have a material adverse effect on ogirass and
financial condition.

Research and Development Activities

Our research and development expenses consistrpyimfcosts associated with the development and
manufacturing of our product candidates, compeosatnd other expenses for research and develogreesdnnel,
supplies and materials, costs for consultants aladed contract research, facility costs, amoitinaand
depreciation. We charge all research and developexgenses to operations as they are incurredotitiatly, our
research and development activities were priméoityised on the development of our Cumulase andrdyle
products, but we are also developing our Chemopaskict candidate, and are currently enrollingepds$ in our
Phase I/lla clinical trial for Chemophase. Our istily is subject to rapid technological advancemeatdseloping
industry standards and new product introductiorsearthancements. As a result, our success deperidsgé part,
on our ability to develop and commercialize product

Our research and development expenditures in f&u@6, 2005 and 2004 totaled approximately $9.Hanil
$10.2 million and $6.5 million, respectively. Resd#aand development expenditures in fiscal 20062405 were
primarily related to the development of our Cumalaad Hylenex products, and our Chemophase product
candidate. In fiscal 2004, our research and dewedmp expenditures were primarily related to theeftgyment of
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our Cumulase and Hylenex products. We anticipaewr will have significant research and developnespenses
in the future in connection with the developmenprdduct candidates.

Government Regulations

The FDA and comparable regulatory agencies in §oreountries regulate extensively the manufactocesale
of the pharmaceutical products that we have deeelap currently are developing. The FDA has esthbli
guidelines and safety standards that are applitalitee non-clinical evaluation and clinical invigation of
therapeutic products and stringent regulationsgbaern the manufacture and sale of these prodlicesprocess of
obtaining regulatory approval for a new therapeptaduct usually requires a significant amountimitand
substantial resources. The steps typically requieddre a product can be produced and marketeuufoian use
include:

< Animal pharmacology studies to obtain preliminariormation on the safety and efficacy of a dr
« Non-clinical evaluatiorin vitro andin vivoincluding extensive toxicology studie

The results of these non-clinical studies may Hmrstied to the FDA as part of an IND applicatioteT
sponsor of an IND application may commence humsitinig of the compound 30 days after submissiom@flD,
unless notified to the contrary by the FDA.

The clinical testing program for a new drug typigahvolves three phases:

« Phase | investigations are generally conducteaaithy subjects. In certain instances, subjects aviife-
threatening disease, such as cancer, may pargdip&hase | studies that determine the maximuenatzd
dose and initial safety of the produ

« Phase Il studies are conducted in limited numbgssilojects with the disease or condition to beté@and
are aimed at determining the most effective doskesahedule of administration, evaluating both gedeid
whether the product demonstrates therapeutic eféewtss against the disease;

» Phase lll studies involve large, well-controlledestigations in diseased subjects and are aimeeti&ging
the safety and effectiveness of the di

Data from all clinical studies, as well as all ndimical studies and evidence of product qualiypically are
submitted to the FDA in an NDA. Although the FDA&quirements for clinical trials are well estabédhand we
believe that we have planned and conducted oucalitrials in accordance with the FDA's applicabdgulations
and guidelines, these requirements, including requéents relating to testing the safety of drug aatds, may be
subject to change as a result of recent announdsmegarding safety problems with approved drugklifonally,
we could be required to conduct additional trisdgdnd what we had planned due to the FDA'’s safety
and/or efficacy concerns or due to differing intetptions of the meaning of our clinical data. (8em 1A, “Risk
Factors.”)

The FDA'’s Center for Drug Evaluation and Reseat€@DER”) must approve a new drug application for a «
before it may be marketed in the U.S. If we begimiarket our proposed products for commercial isalee U.S.,
any manufacturing operations that may be estaldigher outside the U.S. will also be subject gorous
regulation, including compliance with current Gdddnufacturing Practices (“cGMP”). We also may bbjeat to
regulation under the Occupational Safety and He®ttihthe Environmental Protection Act, the ToxighStance
Control Act, the Export Control Act and other preisend future laws of general application. In aiddit the
handling, care and use of laboratory mice, inclgdire hu-PBL-SCID mice and rats, are subject taGh#lelines
for the Humane Use and Care of Laboratory Animalsliphed by the National Institutes of Health.

Regulatory obligations continue post-approval, @etlide the reporting of adverse events when a trug
utilized in the broader commercial population. Potion and marketing of drugs is also strictly regetl, with
penalties imposed for violations of FDA regulatiptiee Lanham Act (trademark statute), and othesrf@cand state
laws, including the federal anti-kickback statute.

We currently intend to continue to seek, directiytwough our partners, approval to market our potsi and
product candidates in foreign countries, which rhaye regulatory processes that differ materiatiyfithose of
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the FDA. We anticipate that we will rely upon phacautical or biotechnology companies to licenseppoposed
products or independent consultants to seek apisravanarket our proposed products in foreign coest We
cannot assure you that approvals to market anyiopmposed products can be obtained in any couApgroval tc
market a product in any one foreign country doasecessarily indicate that approval can be obthinether
countries.

Product Liability Insurance

We maintain product liability insurance on our pwots and clinical trials that provides coveragéhmamount
of $5,000,000 per incident and $5,000,000 in thyregpte.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning our executive officers, imtihg their names, ages and certain biographicatrimation
can be found in Part Ill, Item 10 under the capti@xecutive Officers of the Registrant.” This imfoation is
incorporated by reference into Part | of this répor

Human Resources

As of February 28, 2007, we had 40 full-time empley, including 24 engaged in research and clinical
development activities. Nine employees hold PhitM®. degrees. We currently anticipate hiring apgmately 1(
additional employees by the end of 2007. None ofemoployees are unionized and we believe our oxlakiip with
our employees is good.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

Risks Related To Our Business

We have generated only minimal revenue from prodeates to date; we have a history of net losses and
negative cash flow, and we may never achieve orntan profitability.

We have generated only minimal revenue from prodalds to date and may never generate significant
revenues from future product sales. Even if weaueve significant revenues from product salegnging
revenues and milestone payments, we expect to gigaificant operating losses over the next sewarats. We
have never been profitable, and we may never beqoaitable. Through December 31, 2006, we havarimed
aggregate net losses of $41,099,240.

We may need to raise funds in the next twelve mantind there can be no assurance that such fundk bé
available.

During the next twelve months we may need to radditional capital to complete the steps requicedontinus
development of our product candidates and to fiarmkgal operations. If we engage in acquisitionsonfipanies,
products, or technology in order to execute ouilass strategy, we may need to raise additionatata/e may b
required to raise additional capital in the futtirmugh the public offering of securities, collahtive agreements,
private financings and various other equity or datatncings, including calling outstanding warrattgpurchase ot
common stock.

Currently, warrants to purchase approximately 6illan shares of our common stock are outstandimdy this
amount of outstanding warrants may make us a kesisadble candidate for investment for some poteimigstors.
Approximately 2.3 million of our outstanding wartarontain a call feature that, potentially, mdgwlus to raise
funds from the holders of these warrants. If oungmn stock closes at a price equal to or greager #2.00 per
share for twenty consecutive trading days, we llhgeability, at our sole discretion, to call warsaaxercisable for
up to approximately 1.9 million shares of commatkt provided that we have not exercised a cdlitrig the
preceding three months. Upon such a call, the helolethese warrants have thirty days to decidethdreo either
exercise their warrants at a price of $1.75 peresbhareceive $0.01 from us for each share of comstock that is
not exercised. If we need to raise funds in theriuand we wish to utilize this call right, we wilbt be able to
exercise the call right if we do not meet the mimimclosing price condition and, even if we mees tondition, we
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cannot be sure of the amounts that will be raigesith a call because some or all warrant holdessdecide not 1
exercise their warrants.

Considering our stage of development and the natuoer capital structure, when we are requirechtee
additional capital in the future, the additionaldincing may not be available on favorable termst ail. If we are
successful in raising additional capital, a sultsthnumber of additional shares will be issued #rebse shares will
dilute the ownership interest of our investors.

If we do not receive and maintain regulatory appmds for our product candidates, we will not be alite
commercialize our products, which would substanljgimpair our ability to generate revenues.

With the exception of the December 2004 receift GfE (European Conformity) Mark and April 2005 FDA
clearance for Cumulase, and the December 2005 Fipfogal for Hylenex, none of our product candiddtage
received regulatory approval from the FDA or frony @imilar national regulatory agency or authonityany other
country in which we intend to do business. Apprdwain the FDA is necessary to manufacture and ntarke
pharmaceutical products in the United States. Mtistr countries in which we may do business hawdasi
requirements.

In December 2005, we received FDA approval for Hghe Other manufacturers have FDA approved products
for use as spreading agents, including ISTA Phagutazals, Inc. (“ISTA”), with an ovine-derived hyabnidase,
Vitrase®, Amphastar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Amphastar”}hvei bovine-derived hyaluronidase, Amphadaise
and Primapharm, Inc. also with a bovine-derivedimpmidase, Hydas®'. The FDA has determined that
Amphadase, Hydase, Hylenex and Vitrase are eatihaiaew chemical entities and hence afforded yiears of
market exclusivity. The five year market exclusivitrecludes identical new chemical entity proddicis being
marketed for a period of five years. For so longash of these products are established as digtatifferent new
chemical entities the marketing exclusivity grantegs not prohibit the marketing of any of thessdprcts,
including Hylenex. If the FDA changes its earlietemination that Hylenex is a distinct new chemngcaity, our
ability to market Hylenex will be materially impeit.

The processes for obtaining FDA approval are extentime-consuming and costly, and there is nagnuiae
that the FDA will approve any NDAs that we intendite with respect to any of our product candidatar that the
timing of any such approval will be appropriate éor product launch schedule and other businessitps, which
are subject to change. We have not currently bégeilNDA approval process for any of our other ptiéén
products, and we may not be successful in obtaisirdp approvals for any of our potential products.

We may not receive regulatory approvals for our gt candidates for a variety of reasons, including
unsuccessful clinical trials.

Clinical testing of pharmaceutical products is aldong, expensive and uncertain process andwudaf a
clinical trial can occur at any stage. Even ifialitesults of pre-clinical studies or clinicaldarresults are promising,
we may obtain different results that fail to shdwe tlesired levels of safety and efficacy, or we matyobtain FDA
approval for a variety of other reasons. The ctihtdals of any of our product candidates couldibsuccessful,
which would prevent us from obtaining regulatorpegval and commercializing the product. FDA appt@amn be
delayed, limited or not granted for many reasamduding, among others:

« FDA officials may not find a product candidate safeeffective enough to merit either continueditesor
final approval,

« FDA officials may not find that the data from priénical testing and clinical trials justify apprdyar they
may require additional studies that would makeimmercially unattractive to continue pursuit of epyal;

« the FDA may reject our trial data or disagree witin interpretations of either clinical trial dataapplicable
regulations

« the cost of a clinical trial may be greater tharatwhie originally anticipate, and we may decidedbpursue
FDA approval for such a tria
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« the FDA may not approve our manufacturing processéacilities, or the processes or facilities af o
contract manufacturers or raw material suppli

 the FDA may change its formal or informal appropalicies, act contrary to previous guidance, orpth@w
regulations; o

» the FDA may approve a product candidate for indbecetthat are narrow or under conditions that pthee
product at a competitive disadvantage, which maijt lbur sales and marketing activities or otherwise
adversely impact the commercial potential of a poic

If the FDA does not approve our product candidatestimely fashion on commercially viable termsno
terminate development of any of our product cartésldue to difficulties or delays encountered arégulatory
approval process, it will have a material advensgact on our business and we will be dependerhen t
development of our other product candidates aral/oability to successfully acquire other produantsl
technologies. We may not receive regulatory appro@hemophase, or any other product candidates timely
manner, or at all.

We intend to market certain of our products, arh@es have certain of our products manufacturefyrgign
countries. The process of obtaining regulatory apgis in foreign countries is subject to delay &aitlire for many
of the same reasons set forth above as well ag#&sons that vary from jurisdiction to jurisdictidrhe approval
procedure varies among countries and jurisdictéorg can involve additional testing. The time regdito obtain
approval may differ from that required to obtainABpproval. We may not obtain foreign regulatorpmrvals on i
timely basis, if at all. Approval by the FDA doestensure approval by regulatory authorities ireottountries or
jurisdictions, and approval by one foreign regutatauthority does not ensure approval by regulatuhorities ir
other foreign countries or jurisdictions or by f2A.

If we fail to comply with regulatory requirementsegulatory agencies may take action against us, ethcould
significantly harm our business.

Any approved products, along with the manufactupngcesses, post-approval clinical data, labeling,
advertising and promotional activities for thesedarcts, are subject to continual requirements anigw by the
FDA and other regulatory bodies. Regulatory authesrisubject a marketed product, its manufacturdrthe
manufacturing facilities to continual review andipdic inspections. We will be subject to ongoingA-
requirements, including required submissions adtyadind other post-market information and repoetgistration
requirements, cGMP regulations, requirements regauitthe distribution of samples to physicians asxbrdkeeping
requirements. The cGMP regulations include requénrasrelating to quality control and quality assee as well
as the corresponding maintenance of records anchterttation. We rely on the compliance by our cantra
manufacturers with cGMP regulations and other r@guy requirements relating to the manufacturewfproducts.
We are also subject to state laws and registragiqunirements covering the distribution of our praduRegulatory
agencies may change existing requirements or awaptrequirements or policies. We may be slow tgpadamay
not be able to adapt to these changes or new ssqeitts.

Later discovery of previously unknown problems wotlr products, manufacturing processes or failore t
comply with regulatory requirements, may resuldiry of the following:

* restrictions on our products or manufacturing psses

« warning letters

» withdrawal of the products from the mark

« voluntary or mandatory reca

* fines;

« suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approv

* suspension or termination of any of our ongoingicél trials;

« refusal to permit the import or export of our proti
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« refusal to approve pending applications or supptem approved applications that we subi
 product seizure; ar
« injunctions or the imposition of civil or crimingkenalties

If our product candidates are approved by the FDAtllo not gain market acceptance, our business wilffer
because we may not be able to fund future operagion

Assuming that we obtain the necessary regulatopyoyals, a number of factors may affect the market
acceptance of any of our existing product candi&lateany other products we develop or acquireerftiure,
including, among others:

* the price of our products relative to other theszagor the same or similar treatmel

« the perception by patients, physicians and othenlees of the health care community of the effectbss
and safety of our products for their prescribedttreents

« our ability to fund our sales and marketing effp

« the degree to which the use of our products isictstl by the product label approved by the FI
« the effectiveness of our sales and marketing &ffartd

« the introduction of generic competito

If our products do not gain market acceptance, \ag not be able to fund future operations, includhng
development or acquisition of new product candislated/or our sales and marketing efforts for oyrayed
products, which would cause our business to suffer.

In addition, our ability to market and promote puoduct candidates will be restricted to the lalagisroved by
the FDA. If the approved labels are restrictiver, sales and marketing efforts may be negativelycaéfd.

If we are unable to sufficiently develop our salesarketing and distribution capabilities or entento
agreements with third parties to perform these ftions, we will not be able to commercialize prodsict

We may not be successful in marketing and promatingexisting product candidates or any other petalwe
develop or acquire in the future. We are curreintlihe process of developing our sales, marketimydastribution
capabilities. However, our current capabilitieghiase areas are very limited. In order to commkzeiany product
successfully, we must internally develop substéstifes, marketing and distribution capabilitiesestablish
collaborations or other arrangements with thirdiparto perform these services. We do not havensite
experience in these areas, and we may not be@bkdblish adequate in-house sales, marketingliatribution
capabilities or engage and effectively manageioglahips with third parties to perform any or dlsach services.
To the extent that we enter into co-promotion treoticensing arrangements, our product revenuetialy to be
lower than if we directly marketed and sold ourdurats, and any revenues we receive will depend tipoefforts
of third parties, whose efforts may not meet oyrestations or be successful.

We have entered into non-exclusive distributioreagrents with MediCult AS, a Denmark-based distabut
and MidAtlantic Diagnostics, Inc., a New Jerseysdahdistributor, to market and sell our Cumulaseipod. We
have entered into an exclusive sales and markatineement with Baxter Healthcare Corporation (“Bejtto
market and sell our Hylenex product candidate éWhited States and Puerto Rico. Baxter also lasdht to
market and sell Hylenex on an exclusive basisliteaiitories outside of the United States, if aviten we seek and
receive the applicable regulatory approvals in ¢hiesritories.

We depend upon the efforts of these third partgedmote and sell our current products, but tiearebe no
assurance that the efforts of these third partiésneet our expectations or result in any sigrfit product sales.

12
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If our sole contract manufacturer is unable to maffacture our products, our product development and
commercialization efforts could be delayed or stegp

We have signed a commercial supply agreement wittl Bioservices, Inc. (“Avid”), a contract manufacing
organization, to produce bulk recombinant humarurgaidase for clinical trials and commercial uagid will
produce the active pharmaceutical ingredient usexhch of Cumulase, Hylenex, Chemophase, and Eehanz
Technology under cGMP for commercial scale produnctind will provide support for the chemistry, maaturing
and controls sections for FDA regulatory filingszié has only limited experience manufacturing octivee
pharmaceutical ingredient batches and we relyatitlity to successfully manufacture these bateleesrding to
product specifications. In addition, as a resulbwf Roche Agreement, we are required to scaleuupcive
pharmaceutical ingredient production in order teeb@ur contractual demands. If Avid does not mainita status
as an FDA-approved manufacturing facility, is uesatiol successfully scale our active pharmaceuticakidient
production, or is unable to manufacture the aqgtivarmaceutical ingredient used in our productsmoduct
candidates for any other reason, the commerciaizatf our products and the development of our pobd
candidates will be delayed and our business wilidheersely affected. We have not established arydnoibe able
to establish arrangements with additional manufacsufor these ingredients or products should igtiag supplies
become unavailable or in the event that our sotéraot manufacturer is unable to adequately peritsm
responsibilities. Any delays or interruptions i tbupply of materials by Avid could cause the delglinical trials
and could delay or prevent the commercializatioprofiuct candidates that may receive regulatorycaah. Such
delays or interruptions would have a material asweffect on our business and financial condition.

If we have problems with the third parties that gare, fill, finish, and package our product canditkss for
distribution, our product development and commerdation efforts for these candidates could be dedd or
stopped.

In the event that any of our product candidatesuaesl in clinical trials or receive the necessagutatory
approval for commercialization, we rely on thirdtges to prepare, fill, finish, and package thedurets prior to their
distribution. If we are unable to locate third pestto perform these functions on terms that aoca@wmically
acceptable to us, the progress of clinical trialsld be delayed or even suspended and the comnimatian of
approved product candidates could be delayed @epted. We currently utilize a third-party to premdill, finish,
and package Cumulase. This third party has onlitdiatrexperience manufacturing Cumulase batchesvarely on
its ability to successfully manufacture Cumulaseoading to product specifications. In addition, afeur
distributors, who utilizes our raw material for Culase in production of their proprietary produstekperiencing
technical challenges integrating our raw materitd their proprietary manufacturing process. If third party
manufacturer is unable to successfully manufacd@unmulase, or if our distributor is unable to resalleir technical
issues, we may be unable to supply enough Cumplastkict to meet demand. In addition, we currentiljze a
subsidiary of Baxter Healthcare Corporation (“BaXtéo prepare, fill, finish, and package Hylenexder a
development and supply agreement. Baxter has onitetl experience manufacturing Hylenex batchesvamdely
on its ability to successfully manufacture Hyleme#ches according to product specifications. Angydeor
interruptions in Baxter’s ability to manufacture leilyex batches could have a material adverse inggactr
business and financial condition.

Developing and marketing pharmaceutical products fluman use involves product liability risks, forhich we
currently have limited insurance coverage.

The testing, marketing and sale of pharmaceuticadycts involves the risk of product liability alas by
consumers and other third parties. Although we taairproduct liability insurance coverage, prodiadbility
claims can be high in the pharmaceutical industiy @ur insurance may not sufficiently cover ounacttiabilities.
If product liability claims were made against ussipossible that our insurance carriers may dengftempt to
deny, coverage in certain instances. If a lawsgairsst us is successful, then the lack or insuficy of insurance
coverage could affect materially and adverselytsiness and financial condition. Furthermore,otesi
distributors of pharmaceutical products requireimimm product liability insurance coverage beforeitipurchase
or acceptance of products for distribution. Failireatisfy these insurance requirements could depeir ability
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to achieve broad distribution of our proposed patsland the imposition of higher insurance requasts could
impose additional costs on us.

Our inability to attract, hire and retain key managnent and scientific personnel, and to recruit qifadd
independent directors, could negatively affect dursiness.

Our success depends on the performance of key raareary and scientific employees with biotechnology
experience. Given our small staff size and programmently under development, we depend substintial our
ability to hire, train, retain and motivate highatjty personnel, especially our scientists and rganmeent team in th
field. In addition, we rely on the expertise anddgumce of independent directors to develop busisgagegies and
guide our execution of these strategies. Due togésin the regulatory environment for public conipa over the
past few years, the demand for independent diretias increased and it may be difficult for us, tlueompetition
from both like-sized and larger companies, to riéccqualified independent directors.

Furthermore, if we were to lose key managementopee, particularly Jonathan Lim, M.D., our chief
executive officer, or Gregory Frost, Ph.D., ourefhscientific officer, then we would likely loserse portion of our
institutional knowledge and technical know-how,guttally causing a substantial delay in one or nureur
development programs until adequate replacemesbpeel could be hired and trained. For exampleFBost has
been with us from soon after our inception, angd®sesses a substantial amount of knowledge about o
development efforts. If we were to lose his sersjeee would experience delays in meeting our produc
development schedules. We have not entered intoedegtion or other agreements specifically designemotivate
officers or other employees to remain with Halozyatteer than standard agreements relating to thngesf stock
options that every optionee of Halozyme must einteras a condition of receiving an option grant.

We do not have key man life insurance policieshanlives of any of our employees, including Dr. Lamd
Dr. Frost.

Risks Related To Our Stock

Future sales of shares of our common stock upon theercise of currently outstanding securities ornsuant to
our universal shelf registration statement may neyaly affect our stock price.

As a result of our January 2004 private financhag$action, we issued warrants to private invedtrthe
purchase of 10,461,943 shares of common stockrahase prices ranging from $0.77 to $1.75 per si@ugently,
approximately 3.7 million shares of common stoaka@ issuable upon the exercise of these warrAsta.result o
our October 2004 financing transaction, we issuadants for the purchase of 2,709,542 shares ofremmstock at
a purchase of $2.25 per share. The exercise ¢ thagants could result in significant dilutionsimckholders at the
time of exercise which could negatively affect stock price.

We currently have the ability, from time to time,dffer and sell up to $32.5 million of additioreajuity or debt
securities under a currently effective universallstegistration statement. Sales of substantiawats of shares of
our common stock or other securities under ourans@l shelf registration statement could lowentfaeket price of
our common stock and impair the Company’s abilityaise capital through the sale of equity se@sitin the
future, we may issue additional options, warramtstber derivative securities convertible into Halme common
stock.

Our stock price is subject to significant volatiit

We participate in a highly dynamic industry, whizften results in significant volatility in the maatkprice of
common stock irrespective of company performaneeaAesult, our high and low stock prices durirgtthelve
months ended February 28, 2007 were $9.70 and $24jgectively. We expect our stock price to cargito be
subject to significant volatility and, in additiom the other risks and uncertainties describedudisee in this report
and all other risks and uncertainties that areseitiot known to us at this time or which we deerhgommaterial,
any of the following factors may lead to a sigrafi¢ drop in our stock price:

« our failure, or the failure of one of our th-party partners, to comply with the terms of ourtparships
« general negative conditions in the healthcare itrgu
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< general negative conditions in the financial mask
« the failure, for any reason, to obtain FDA apprdealany of our products
« the failure, for any reason, to secure or defendrdellectual property positior

« for those products that are approved by the FDAfdlilure of the FDA to approve such products tireely
manner consistent with the FI's historical approval proces

* the suspension of our Chemophase clinical trialtdusafety or patient tolerability issut

« our failure, or the failure of our third-party paers, to successfully commercialize products apgutdyy the
FDA;

« our failure, or the failure of our thi-party partners, to generate product revenues pat&i by investor:
« problems with our sole API contract manufactureowr sole fill and finish manufacturer for Hylene
* the exercise of our right to redeem certain outitanwarrants to purchase our common stock;

« the sale of additional deand/orequity securities by u:

Trading in our stock has historically been limitedp investors may not be able to sell as much staxkhey
want to at prevailing market prices.

Notwithstanding recent increases to the daily trgdiolume, our stock has historically traded aivadr daily
trading volume. If current trading volumes do nohitinue and limited trading in our stock returtisnay be difficul
for stockholders to sell their shares in the publarket at any given time at prevailing prices.

Our decision to redeem outstanding warrants mayweridown the market price of our stock.

We may have the ability to redeem certain outstapdiarrants, under certain conditions, that magxercised
for approximately 2.3 million shares of common &toEhe redemption price for these warrants is $@&lshare,
but the warrant holders have the opportunity ta@ge their warrants prior to redemption at the@of $1.75 per
share. If we decide to redeem any portion of otstanding warrants in the future, some selling sgcholders
may choose to sell outstanding shares of commak stcorder to finance the exercise of the warramitsr to their
redemption. This pattern of selling may result iduction of our common stock’s market price.

Risks Related To Our Industry

Compliance with the extensive government regulasdie which we are subject is expensive and time
consuming, and may result in the delay or canceitat of product sales, introductions or modificatian

Extensive industry regulation has had, and willtoare to have, a significant impact on our businédis
pharmaceutical companies, including Halozyme, abjegt to extensive, complex, costly and evolviegulation by
the federal government, principally the FDA andatiesser extent, the U.S. Drug Enforcement Adrtration
(“DEA") and foreign and state government agenclé®e Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, the Cdatto
Substances Act and other domestic and foreigntetatind regulations govern or influence the testing
manufacturing, packaging, labeling, storing, redadping, safety, approval, advertising, promotgaie and
distribution of our products. Under certain of ta@sgulations, Halozyme and its contract supphbeis
manufacturers are subject to periodic inspectioitsalr their respective facilities, procedures apérations
and/or the testing of products by the FDA, the Dd&l other authorities, which conduct periodic insjpas to
confirm that Halozyme and its contract supplierd aranufacturers are in compliance with all applieabgulations
The FDA also conducts pre-approval and post-appreveews and plant inspections to determine whetie
systems, or our contract suppliers’ and manufartupeocesses, are in compliance with cGMP andrdeim
regulations. If we, or our contract supplier, thiése inspections, we may not be able to commaeialr product
in a timely manner without incurring significantditional costs, or at all.
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In addition, the FDA imposes a number of complayutatory requirements on entities that advertigk an
promote pharmaceuticals, including, but not limitedstandards and regulations for direct-to-coresuaalvertising,
off-label promotion, industry-sponsored scientditd educational activities, and promotional agt@sgiinvolving the
Internet.

We are dependent on receiving FDA and other goventah approvals prior to manufacturing, marketind a
shipping our products. Consequently, there is abaayisk that the FDA or other applicable governtaleauthorities
will not approve our products, or will take postapval action limiting or revoking our ability tel our products,
or that the rate, timing and cost of such approwéllsadversely affect our product introduction psaor results of
operations.

Our suppliers and sole manufacturer are subjectregulation by the FDA and other agencies, and ife§hdo
not meet their commitments, we would have to findbstitute suppliers or manufacturers, which couleldy the
supply of our products to market.

Regulatory requirements applicable to pharmacduticaucts make the substitution of suppliers and
manufacturers costly and time consuming. We haviateonal manufacturing capabilities and are, axpket to be
in the future, entirely dependent on contract mactufrers and suppliers for the manufacture of codycts and for
their active and other ingredients. The disqualifiin of these manufacturers and suppliers thralgin failure to
comply with regulatory requirements could negagielpact our business because the delays andioosiaining
and qualifying alternate suppliers (if such altéineasuppliers are available, which we cannot asscould delay
clinical trials or otherwise inhibit our ability toring approved products to market, which wouldehamaterial
adverse effect on our business and financial cimmdit

We may be required to initiate or defend againgjd proceedings related to intellectual propertghis, which
may result in substantial expense, delay and/orga®n of the development and commercializationooir
products.

We rely on patents to protect our intellectual mmtyp rights. The strength of this protection, hoevs
uncertain. For example, it is not certain that:

« our patents and pending patent applications congglygtsand/ortechnology that we invented fire

« we were the first to file patent applications feese inventions

« others will not independently develop similar deabative technologies or duplicate our technolsg
 any of our pending patent applications will resnlissued patents; ar

 any of our issued patents, or patent pending agpics that result in issued patents, will be hellid and
infringed in the event the patents are assertehstyathers

We currently own or license several U.S. patentsaso have pending patent applications. Therebeamo
assurance that our existing patents, or any paitenied to us as a result of our pending patericagipns, will
provide a basis for commercially viable productsl provide us with any competitive advantageswit not face
third-party challenges or be the subject of furthrceedings limiting their scope or enforceabil®ych limitations
in our patent portfolio could have a material adeegffect on our business and financial conditioraddition, if any
of our pending patent applications do not resuissued patents, this could have a material adedfset on our
business and financial condition.

We may become involved in interference proceedingkse U.S. Patent and Trademark Office to deteentiire
priority of our inventions. In addition, costlyitiation could be necessary to protect our patesitipa. We also rely
on trademarks to protect the names of our prodiittsse trademarks may be challenged by otherse Enforce ou
trademarks against third parties, such enforcep@teedings may be expensive. We also rely on sadeets,
unpatented proprietary know-how and continuing tetbgical innovation that we seek to protect with
confidentiality agreements with employees, consitdtand others with whom we discuss our busineispuies ma'
arise concerning the ownership of intellectual propor the applicability or enforceability of treeagreements, and
we might not be able to resolve these disputesiirfavor.
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In addition to protecting our own intellectual pesty rights, third parties may assert patent, tnaaks or
copyright infringement or other intellectual progyeclaims against us based on what they believeéhaie own
intellectual property rights. If we become involviadany intellectual property litigation, we may tegjuired to pay
substantial damages, including but not limitedréble damages, for past infringement if it is ulditely determined
that our products infringe a third-party’s intelieal property rights. Even if infringement claintgainst us are
without merit, defending a lawsuit takes significime, may be expensive and may divert managemetteéntion
from other business concerns. Further, we maydppst from developing, manufacturing or selling products
until we obtain a license from the owner of theveint technology or other intellectual propertyhtsg If such a
license is available at all, it may require us &y pubstantial royalties or other fees.

Future acquisitions could disrupt our business amérm our financial condition.

In order to augment our product pipeline or otheeastrengthen our business, we may decide to &quir
additional businesses, products and technologiesvéhave limited experience in evaluating and detimy
acquisitions, our ability as an organization to makich acquisitions is unproven. Acquisitions caelglire
significant capital infusions and could involve mgaisks, including, but not limited to, the follomg:

< we may have to issue convertible debt or equityistes to complete an acquisition, which wouldutil our
stockholders and could adversely affect the marykee of our common stoc

* an acquisition may negatively impact our resultsdrations because it may require us to incuelarge-
time charges to earnings, amortize or write dowowamts related to goodwill and other intangible &ssar
incur or assume substantial debt or liabilitiesit onay cause adverse tax consequences, substantial
depreciation or deferred compensation char

« we may encounter difficulties in assimilating antegrating the business, technologies, productsppeel
or operations of companies that we acqt

« certain acquisitions may disrupt our relationshithvexisting customers who are competitive with the
acquired busines

 acquisitions may require significant capital infuss and the acquired businesses, products or tedies
may not generate sufficient revenue to offset asition costs

 an acquisition may disrupt our ongoing businesseriliresources, increase our expenses and distract
managemen

 acquisitions may involve the entry into a geograpitibusiness market in which we have little opnior
experience; an

 key personnel of an acquired company may decidéonobrk for us.

If any of these risks occurred, it could adversdfect our business, financial condition and opecatesults.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to idgoti consummate any future acquisitions on acdgeterms, or
at all. If we do pursue any acquisitions, it is ibke that we may not realize the anticipated hen&bm such
acquisitions or that the market will not view swdquisitions positively.

If third-party reimbursement and customer contracése not available, our products may not be accebire the
market.

Our ability to earn sufficient returns on our protiuwill depend in part on the extent to which reimsement
for our products and related treatments will belakée from government health administration auities, private
health insurers, managed care organizations arm b#althcare providers.

Third-party payers are increasingly attemptingnatlboth the coverage and the level of reimbursenoé new
drug products to contain costs. Consequently, figmt uncertainty exists as to the reimbursemtaitis of newly
approved healthcare products. Third-party payens moh establish adequate levels of reimbursemaerthéo
products that we commercialize, which could lirhiégit market acceptance and result in a materiad@dveffect on
our financial condition.
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Customer contracts, such as with group paying dzgtions and hospital formularies, will often ndten
contract or formulary status without either the éstvprice or substantial proven clinical differatitn. If our
products are compared to animal-extracted hyaldesa@s by these entities, it is possible that nedghthese
conditions will be met, which could limit marketaaptance and result in a material adverse effecuoiiinancial
condition.

The rising cost of healthcare and related pharmadieal product pricing has led to cost-containmentgssures
that could cause us to sell our products at loweicps, resulting in less revenue to us.

Any of our products that have been or in the fumneapproved by the FDA may be purchased or raiselu
by state and federal government authorities, peitatalth insurers and other organizations, suttealth
maintenance organizations and managed care orgianzaSuch third-party payors increasingly chajken
pharmaceutical product pricing. The trend towarchagged healthcare in the United States, the grofwlich
organizations, and various legislative proposatsemactments to reform healthcare and governmeatance
programs, including the Medicare Prescription Diuadernization Act of 2003, could significantly innce the
manner in which pharmaceutical products are presdrand purchased, resulting in lower prices aralfeduction
in demand. Such cost containment measures andhbaadtreforms could adversely affect our abilitgéd our
products. Furthermore, individual states have becmreasingly aggressive in passing legislatiah an
implementing regulations designed to control phaeunéical product pricing, including price or patien
reimbursement constraints, discounts, restrictmmsertain product access, importation from otloemtries and
bulk purchasing. Legally mandated price controlpaypment amounts by third-party payors or otheric®ns
could negatively and materially impact our revenaed financial condition. We anticipate that welwilcounter
similar regulatory and legislative issues in mdbkieo countries outside the United States.

We face intense competition and rapid technologichbnge that could result in the development of guzts by
others that are superior to the products we are eleping.

We have numerous competitors in the United Statdsahroad, including, among others, major pharmazdu
and specialized biotechnology firms, universitind ather research institutions that may be devetppompeting
products. Such competitors include, but are natdidhto, Sigma-Aldrich Corporation, ISTA Pharmadeais, Inc.
(ISTA), Amphastar Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and Primaam, Inc., among others. These competitors magldpv
technologies and products that are more effecsigizr, or less costly than our current or futudpct candidates
that could render our technologies and productidames obsolete or noncompetitive. Many of thesepstitors
have substantially more resources and product dprednt, manufacturing and marketing experience and
capabilities than we do. In addition, many of competitors have significantly greater experien@nttve do in
undertaking pre-clinical testing and clinical tsaf pharmaceutical product candidates and ob@iRIDA and other
regulatory approvals of products and therapiesi$erin healthcare. Other manufacturers have FDAoapd
products for use as spreading agents, including\IBffarmaceuticals, Inc. (“ISTA”"), with an ovine-dexd
hyaluronidase, Vitras®, Amphastar Pharmaceuticals, Inc., with a bovingved hyaluronidase, Amphada&g,
and Primapharm, Inc., also with a bovine-derivedlhpnidase, Hydas® . The FDA has determined that
Amphadase, Hydase, Hylenex and Vitrase are distieatchemical entities and hence afforded five yedmarket
exclusivity. The five year market exclusivity predes identical new chemical entity products frorim@penarketed
for a period of five years. As each of these preglicestablished as distinctly different new chehentities the
marketing exclusivity granted does not prohibit tharketing of the products.

We are exposed to product liability claims, andimance against these claims may not be availableisoon
reasonable terms or at all.

We might incur substantial liability in connectiwiith clinical trials or the sale of our productsouct liability
insurance is expensive and in the future may na@vadlable on commercially acceptable terms, allaive
currently carry a limited amount of product liatyilinsurance. A successful claim or claims brougdinst us in
excess of our insurance coverage could materiallgnfour business and financial condition.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

Our administrative offices and research facilities currently located in San Diego, California. &se an
aggregate of approximately 18,400 square feetfafeodnd research space for approximately $34,@00mmnth.
We have two separate leases for our facilitieschvieixpire in December 2007. We believe the spaadaguate for
our immediate needs, but additional space willljikee required soon and may be more costly as ywarakour
research and development activities. We do nosémreny significant difficulties in obtaining argguired
additional facilities.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be involved in litigaticelating to claims arising out of our operationghie norma
course of business. Any of these claims could stljg to costly litigation and, while we generdilieve that we
have adequate insurance to cover many differemistyp liabilities, our insurance carriers may deayerage or our
policy limits may be inadequate to fully satisfyyadamage awards or settlements. If this were t@péapthe
payment of any such awards could have a mateniedrad effect on our results of operations and firmposition.
Additionally, any such claims, whether or not swsfal, could damage our reputation and businesscitently
are not a party to any legal proceedings, the agventcome of which, in management’s opinion, iittliglly or in
the aggregate, would have a material adverse effeotr results of operations or financial position

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holde

There were no matters submitted to a vote of ocurstly holders during the fourth quarter of fis@@l06.

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equit
Securities.
Market Information

Since November 1, 2004, our common stock has tradddr the symbol “HTI” on The American Stock
Exchange (the “AMEX") The following table sets forth the high and lowesaprices per share of our common s
during each quarter of the two most recent fisealry:

Fiscal Year 200t High Low

First Quarte! $3.71  $1.7¢
Second Quarte $3.5¢ $2.2C
Third Quartel $2.74 $2.1F
Fourth Quarte $8.7C  $2.4¢
Fiscal Year 200! High Low

First Quartel $2.24  $1.5C
Second Quarte $2.1C  $1.6C
Third Quartel $2.2z2  $1.6C
Fourth Quarte $2.3¢  $1.7¢C

On February 28, 2007, the closing sales price otommon stock was $8.29 per share. As of Febr2@ry
2007, we had approximately 3,000 stockholders adne: We have not paid any dividends on our comstook
since our inception and do not expect to pay divildeon our common stock in the foreseeable future.
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The graph below matches the cumulative 33-monti teturn of holders of our common stock with the
cumulative total returns of the AMEX Composite irdand the AMEX Biotechnology index. The graph assam
that the value of the investment in our commonlstowd in each of the indexes (including reinvestnoén
dividends) was $100 on March 12, 2004 and tracks@ugh December 31, 2006.
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—C— AMEX Biotechnology /A_ﬂ_—ﬂ/;
150 A#fir—{r:jgijizjﬁihahhgﬁfo7Lﬁ
i o W
) ) - /1\EI—|:/
-

50 _H""‘u-.l:'._-—-—l:l""'_'_ = ]

DOLLARS

T T T T T T T T T T T
3204 304 6i0d 904 1204 305 605 905 1205 306 606 906 12406

* $100 invested on 3/12/04 in stock or on 2/28/0O#hdex-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December .

3/12/04 | 3/04 | 6/04 | 9/04 |12/0< | 3/05 | 6/05 [ 9/05 [12/0t | 3/06 | 6/06 | 9/06 |12/06

Halozyme Therapeutics Inc 10C 108 | 77 54 53 40 44 51 44 83 65 64 | 194
AMEX Composite 10C 101 | 98 [101 | 11F | 11 | 12E | 142 | 142 | 15¢ | 15€ | 155 | 16¢
105 | 95 | 111 | 13C [ 13€ [ 13E [ 12F [ 13C | 13C

AMEX Biotechnology 10C 9€ | 98 97

The stock price performance included in this graphot necessarily indicative of future stock price
performance

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During October, November, and December, holdersadbus outstanding warrants exercised their rigits
purchase 892,711 common shares for gross procéagpmximately $979,064. The shares and underlyiagant:
were purchased for investment in a private placeémesampt from the registration requirements of$eeurities Ac

pursuant to Section 4(2) thereof.

20




Table of Contents

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data set foetbw at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and for gualfiyears
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, are ddrivedour audited consolidated financial statemémtkided
elsewhere in this report. This information shoutdréad in conjunction with those consolidated feiainstatements,
the notes thereto, and with “Management’s Discusaitd Analysis of Financial Condition and Resufts o
Operations.” The selected consolidated financitd dat forth below at December 31, 2004, 2003 @82 2and for
the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, aved&mom our audited consolidated financial statats that ar
contained in reports previously filed with the SEGt included herein.

Summary Financial Information

Years Ended December 31

Statement of operations date 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Total revenue $ 98L,74t $ 127,20¢ $ — 3 — 3 —
Net loss $(14,751,98) $(13,275,37) $(9,091,37) $(2,115,02) $(1,134,76)

Net loss per share, basic and dilu  $ (0.29 $ (0.2¢) $ (0.26) $ (0.3)) $ (0.25)
Shares used in computing net loss

share, basic and dilute 62,610,26 50,317,02 35,411,12 6,826,10' 4,599,59:

Cash dividends declared persh  $ — % — 3 —  $ — 3 —
December 31

Balance sheet date 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Working capital $41,343,01 $17,802,80. $14,566,20 $230,14(  $(521,23()
Total asset $46,091,32 $20,510,25 $16,403,67 $647,24° $ 230,58(
Deferred revenue $19,981,53 $ 254,13t ¢ — % — 3 —
Total liabilities $23,010,08 $ 2,303,361 $ 1,579,41. $273,44( $610,14(
Stockholder (deficit) equity $23,081,23 $18,206,88 $14,824,25  $373,80° $(379,56()

Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operatior

In addition to historical information, the followgndiscussion contains forward-looking statemendas #ne
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual resot&y differ substantially from those referred todierdue to a
number of factors, including but not limited tokssdescribed in the section entitled Risks Reltt€dur Business
and elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company dedicated tddkielopment and commercialization of recombinant
human enzymes for the drug delivery, palliativeecancology, and infertility markets. Our existipgpducts and
our products under development are based on iote#leproperty covering the family of human enzyrkeswn as
hyaluronidases. Hyaluronidases are enzymes (ps)t#iat break down hyaluronic acid, which is a redty
occurring substance in the human body. Our teclyyakbased on recombinant human PH20 (rHuPH28)naan
synthetic version of hyaluronidase that degradedungnic acid, a space-filling, gel-like substatitat is a major
component of tissues throughout the body, suclkiasasd cartilage. The PH20 enzyme is a naturaluering
enzyme that digests hyaluronic acid to tempordmigak down the gel, thereby facilitating the pest&in and
diffusion of other drugs and fluids that are inggtunder the skin or in the muscle. It also degrdlde cumulus
matrix surrounding oocytes (eggs) facilitating itrarfertilization (IVF).

Currently, we have only limited revenue from Cunsel@roduct sales and the sale of the active phautiaal
ingredient (“API”) for Hylenex. All of our potentigroducts, with the exception of Cumulase and Hgle are
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either in the research, pre-clinical, or clinici@ge. It may be years, if ever, before we are &btibtain the
regulatory approvals necessary to generate meanirgyfenue from the sale of these product candsdéeaddition
we have only generated minimal revenue from ouplmmaceutical operations and we have had operatidget
losses each year since inception, with an accusdiideficit of $41,099,240 as of December 31, 2006.

Recent Highlights

In December 2006, we entered into a license ardlmmation agreement with Roche for Enhanze Teduyol
Under the terms of the agreement, Roche will obdaivorldwide, exclusive license to develop and caraialize
product combinations of rHUPH20, our proprietaryorabinant human hyaluronidase, and up to thirteechB
target compounds resulting from the collaborat®oache paid us $20 million as an initial upfront peant for the
application of rHUPH20 to three pre-defined Roclutogic targets. Pending the successful completioa series of
clinical, regulatory, and sales events, Roche nagyys further milestones which could potentiallgale a value of
up to $111 million. In addition, Roche may pay ogaities on product sales for these first thregets. Over the
next ten years, Roche will also have the optioexusively develop and commercialize rHUPH20 vaith
additional ten targets to be identified by Rochreyjuled that Roche will be obligated to pay conirguexclusivity
maintenance fees to us in order to maintain it¢usie development rights for these targets. Fohed the
additional ten targets, Roche may pay us furthénonpand milestone payments of up to $47 milli@n farget as
well as royalties on potential product sales faheaf these additional ten targets. AdditionallpcRe will obtain
access to our expertise in developing and appltihd®H20 to Roche targets. In addition, on Decemdb@006, an
affiliate of Roche purchased 3,385,000 shares wfncon stock for an aggregate of approximately $idiltlon, or
$3.27 per share, which represents a 25% premiuhetaverage closing price of our common stock tve90 day:
immediately preceding the purchase date.

In February 2007, we amended certain agreementsBaitter for Hylenex and entered into a new agregme
for kits and co-formulations with rHUPH20. Undee tterms of these agreements, Baxter paid us aal injifront
payment of $10 million and, pending the successfuhpletion of a series of regulatory and sales esy@&axter ma
make milestone payments which could potentiallgiea value of up to $25 million. In addition, Baxtell pay
royalties on the sales of products covered undeatiteements. Baxter prepaid $1 million of thegalties in
connection with the execution of the agreementsBader will be obligated to prepay $9 million afditional
royalties on or prior to January 1, 2009. Baxtdt aso now assume all development, manufacturtigical,
regulatory, sales and marketing costs of the prisdemvered by the agreements. We will continueufipky Baxter
with the active pharmaceutical ingredient, and Betill fill and finish Hylenex and hold it for sskquent
distribution. Baxter will obtain a worldwide, exsiwe license to develop and commercialize prodaotlinations
of rHUPH20, our proprietary recombinant human hyatidase, with Baxter hydration fluids and generiall
molecule drugs (with the exception of combinatiwiith (i) bisphosphonates, as well as (ii) cytostaind cytotoxic
chemotherapeutic agents, the rights to which haes betained by us). Additionally, Baxter will papyalties on th
sales, if any, of the products that result fromdblaboration. In addition, on February 13, 2087 affiliate of
Baxter purchased 2,070,394 shares of Halozgroeimon stock for an aggregate of $20 milliors@66 per shar
which represents a 25% premium to the averagenggwmice of our common stock over the 30 days iniately
preceding the purchase date.

Current Products and Product Candidates

We currently have two FDA-approved products, Curselland Hylenex. We also have one product candidate,
Chemophase, which is currently in clinical develept All of our other product candidates are inrgeearch or
pre-clinical stage of development. We received aBltopean Conformity) Mark for Cumulase in Decent@04
and FDA clearance in April 2005. We launched Cursellim the European Union and in the United Statdsine
2005.

During March 2005, we filed a new drug applicat{tdDA") for the spreading agent Hylenex. Other
manufacturers have FDA approved products for uspeesading agents, including ISTA Pharmaceutidats,
(“ISTA"), with an ovine (ram) hyaluronidase, Vit®8, Amphastar Pharmaceuticals, Inc., with a bovingl)b
hyaluronidase, Amphada®¢, and Primapharm, Inc. also with a bovine hyalutase, Hydas® . The FDA has
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determined that Amphadase, Hydase, Hylenex anddétare distinct new chemical entities and herfoedafd five
years of market exclusivity. The five year marketlasivity precludes identical new chemical enpitpducts frorr
being marketed for a period of five years. As eaicthese products is established as distinctlyedifit new
chemical entities, the marketing exclusivity grahtimes not prohibit the marketing of the produbisting
December 2005, we received FDA approval for oureidgk NDA.

During June 2005, we submitted an investigatioeal drug application (“IND”) in order to begin cloal
testing of our Chemophase product candidate. Weived authorization to initiate clinical testing@hemophase i
August 2005, and we commenced patient enrolimeatiirinitial clinical protocol under this IND in @aber 2005.
In March 2006, we completed enrollment in our Chphase Phase | clinical trial. In April 2006, we ¢oenced
patient enroliment in our Chemophase Phase I/itacell trial.

Revenues

Product revenue will depend on our ability to depelmanufacture, obtain regulatory approvals far an
successfully commercialize our product candidatés.received a CE (European Conformity) Mark for Qilase ir
December 2004, which allows the Company to markeb@ase in the European Union. In addition, we ikezk
FDA clearance for Cumulase in April 2005, whicloals the Company to market Cumulase in the UnitateSt In
June 2005, Cumulase was launched in the Europem@nd United States. In December 2005, we reddiizA
approval for Hylenex.

Revenues from collaborative and licensing agreesnam recognized based on the performance requitsrai
the agreement. Revenue is deferred for fees ret&efore earned. Nonrefundable upfront fees, wiverbave an
ongoing involvement or performance obligation, reorded as deferred revenue and recognized asuewwer th
contract or development period. In December 20@6entered into the Roche Agreement which consisiso-
refundable upfront license fees, reimbursementssdgarch and development services and variousrpefae or
sales milestones and future product royalty payméddte to our ongoing involvement obligation, weargled the
nonrefundable upfront license fee received undeiRbche Agreement as deferred revenue when recigived
December 2006 and will be recognized over the t&rthe contract.

Costs and Expenses

Cost of Sales.Cost of sales consists primarily of raw materitiigd-party manufacturing costs, fill and finish
costs, freight associated with the sales of Cureulasd the API for Hylenex.

Research and Developmen©Our research and development expenses consisilsi of costs associated with
the development and manufacturing of our produsticiates, compensation and other expenses foroesaead
development personnel, supplies and materialss éostonsultants and related contract researitical trials,
facility costs, amortization and depreciation. Wiarge all research and development expenses tataper as they
are incurred. Our research and development aetivitie primarily focused on the development ofCluemophase
and Hylenex product candidates which are both baseslr recombinant human PH20 (rHuPH20) enzyme, a
human synthetic version of hyaluronidase. We cotedlenroliment in our Chemophase Phase | clini@@lih
March 2006 and commenced patient enroliment inGhemophase Phase I/lla clinical trial in April 2006

Since our inception through December 31, 2006, axelincurred research and development costs of
$28.3 million. From January 1, 2002 through Decen®ig 2006, approximately 58% of our research and
development costs were associated with the reseatilevelopment of our recombinant human PH20reazyse!
in our Cumulase and Hylenex products and approxitypdi8% of our research and development costs were
associated with the development of our Chemophasiupt candidate. Due to the uncertainty in obiejritDA
approval, our reliance on third parties, and cortigetpressures, we are unable to estimate withcanainty the
additional costs we will incur in the continued dBpment of our Hylenex product and our Chemoplpasduct
candidate for commercialization. However, we exmgegtresearch and development costs to increastasiially if
we are able to advance our product candidatedadtdo stages of clinical development.

Clinical development timelines, likelihood of susseand total costs vary widely. Although we aneently
focused primarily on advancing Chemophase, we igatie that we will make determinations as to whiedearch
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and development projects to pursue and how muadtirigrto direct to each project on an ongoing bissigsponse
to the scientific and clinical progress of eachduat candidate and other market and regulatoryldpweents.

Product candidate completion dates and costs vamyfisantly for each product candidate and ardiclift to
estimate. The lengthy process of seeking regulatpprovals, and the subsequent compliance withcaiyé
regulations, require the expenditure of substangisburces. Any failure by us to obtain, or anyageh obtaining,
regulatory approvals could cause our research ameldpment expenditures to increase and, in tave la material
adverse effect on our results of operations. Weived FDA approval for our Hylenex product candédit
December 2005. We submitted an IND for our Chemsehmoduct candidate in June 2005, and initiated®h
clinical trials in October 2005. In March 2006, e@mpleted enrollment in our Chemophase Phaseitalitrial. In
April 2006, we commenced patient enroliment in @aemophase Phase I/lla clinical trial. We cannatdrtain
when or if our Chemophase product candidate, orodyr other product candidates, will receive fatpry
approval or whether any net cash inflow from oue@bphase product candidate, or any of our othetyato
candidates, or development projects, will commence.

Selling, General and AdministrativeSelling, general and administrative expensesisbpsmarily of
compensation and other expenses related to ouom@igpoperations and administrative employees,ustow and
legal fees, other professional services expensakating expenses, as well as other expenses atsbueiith
operating as a publicly traded company. We antteipgantinued increases in selling, general and midimative
expenses as our research and development actsdtigsue to expand.

Interest and Other Income, Nelnterest and other income, net consists primarfilipterest income earned on
our cash and cash equivalents. We anticipate isegeia other income due to increases in our casltash
equivalents.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadiand results of operations are based on oundiah
statements, which have been prepared in accordeaitit&).S. generally accepted accounting principtes,
U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these financial stegets requires us to make estimates and judgnteattaffect th
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revennesexpenses and related disclosure of contingeetaand
liabilities. We review our estimates on an ongdagis. We base our estimates on historical expzriand on
various other assumptions that we believe to bgoregble under the circumstances, the results aftwibirm the
basis for making judgments about the carrying v@hfeassets and liabilities. Actual results mayedifrom these
estimates under different assumptions or conditidves believe the following accounting policies ®dritical to the
judgments and estimates used in the preparationrdinancial statement

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with the SE@H &ccounting Bulletin No. 104Revenue Recognition
and Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, IssueDR&21,Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.
Revenue is recognized when all of the followinigecia are met: (1) persuasive evidence of amgeeent exists;
(2) delivery has occurred or services have beetdereal; (3) the seller’s price to the buyer is fixed determinable;
and (4) collectibility is reasonably assured.

Product Sales

Cumulase revenue is recognized when the transfewnérship occurs, upon shipment to the distributor
Accounts receivable is recorded net of an allowdaceoubtful accounts. Currently, the allowancedoubtful
accounts is zero as the collectibility of accoustsivable is reasonably assured. We are not abtiga accept
returns for products. Thus, no allowance for pradeaturns has been established.

Under the terms of our Baxter agreement, we wipby Baxter the active pharmaceutical ingredient fo
Hylenex at our cost and Baxter will fill and finistylenex and hold it for subsequent distributiomiring the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we transferr&g $10 and $254,000, respectively, of the active
pharmaceutical ingredient for Hylenex to Baxterffing and finishing. Because of our continuedatvement in
the development and production process of Hylemebeuthe terms of the Supply Agreement, the easnimgcess
is
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not considered to be complete. Accordingly, we defgenue and the related product costs resulton fransfers
of the active pharmaceutical ingredient for Hylet@Baxter until the product is ultimately solddastomers, or
otherwise disposed.

Revenues under Collaborative Agreements

Revenues from collaborative and licensing agreesnar recognized based on the performance requiterol
the agreement. Revenue is deferred for fees retéefore earned. Nonrefundable upfront fees, wiverbave an
ongoing involvement or performance obligation, reorded as deferred revenue and recognized asuewwer th
contract or development period. In December 20@6entered into the Roche Agreement which consisiso-
refundable upfront license fees, reimbursementes#arch and development services and variousrpefe or
sales milestones and future product royalty payméddte to our ongoing involvement obligation, weareled the
nonrefundable upfront license fee received undeiRbche Agreement as deferred revenue when recigived
December 2006 and will be recognized over the trthe contract.

Reimbursements of research and development semiieaecognized as revenues during the period iohwh
the services are performed. Payments related ttative, performance-based milestones in a caitdive
agreement are recognized as revenue upon the aohgen of the milestones as specified in the uniteyly
agreements when they represent the culminationeoéarnings process. Royalty revenue from licepseducts wil
be recognized when earned in accordance with thestef the license agreements.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists primarily of raw materitgd-party manufacturing costs, fill and finishsts, freight
associated with the sales of Cumulase, and thdagxMylenex.

Share-based compensation expense

We grant options to purchase our common stock temployees, directors and consultants under ogkst
option plans. The benefits provided under thesesptae share-based payments subject to the prosisfaevised
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, $2are-Based PaymefiSFAS 123(R)"). Effective January 1,
2006, we adopted SFAS 123(R), including the prowisiof the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107
(“SAB 107") and use the fair value method to acedonshare-based payments with a modified prospect
application which provides for certain changesh®nethod for valuing share-based compensationvaluation
provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply to new awards anavtards that are outstanding on the effective alate
subsequently modified or cancelled. Under the niedliprospective application, prior periods areneotsed for
comparative purposes. Total compensation costuipslbare-based payments recognized for the yeadend
December 31, 2006 was $1.3 million. Selling, gehand administrative expense and research and aaveint
expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 iedlsikdare-based compensation of $850,000 and $425,00
respectively. As of December 31, 2006, $2.2 millidrtiotal unrecognized compensation costs relatetbhvested
awards is expected to be recognized over a weighterhge period of 1.9 years.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a Black-Scholes-Mertomoopt
pricing model (“Black-Scholes model”) that usesumsptions regarding a number of complex and subjecti
variables. These variables include, but are nateinto, our expected stock price volatility, adtaad projected
employee stock option exercise behaviors, risk-fneerest rate and expected dividends. Expecteatilibes are
based on historical volatility of our common st@eid our peer group. The expected term of optioastgd is base
on analyses of historical employee terminationsrated option exercises. The rigke interest rates are based or
U.S. Treasury yield in effect at the time of thargr Since we do not expect to pay dividends orcoormon stock
in the foreseeable future, we estimated the divddgeld to be 0%. SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitui@be estimate
at the time of grant and revised, if necessarguipsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffenirthose estimates.
We estimate pre-vesting forfeitures based on atotical experience and those of our peer group.

If factors change and we employ different assunmgtio the application of SFAS 123(R) in future pds, the
compensation expense that we record under SFAR) 234y differ significantly from what we have reded in
the current period. There is a high degree of stibjey involved when using option pricing modetsdstimate
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share-based compensation under SFAS 123(R). Cshane-based payments, such as employee stocksptiay
expire worthless or otherwise result in zero irgigrnvalue as compared to the fair values originadifmated on the
grant date and reported in our financial statemeXitsrnatively, values may be realized from thesgruments that
are significantly in excess of the fair values oraly estimated on the grant date and reportezlimfinancial
statements. There is currently no market-based amsm or other practical application to verify tieéiability and
accuracy of the estimates stemming from these tialuanodels, nor is there a means to compare ajudtatie
estimates to actual values. Although the fair valilemployee share-based awards is determinector@ance with
SFAS 123(R) and the SEC's Staff Accounting Bulléio. 107 (“SAB 107”) using an option-pricing mod#iat
value may not be indicative of the fair value obedrin a willing buyer/willing seller market traregmn.

Clinical Trial and Contract Research Expenses

Research and development expenditures are charggtations as incurred. Our expenses relatelihioat
trials are based on estimates of the serviceswett@nd efforts expended pursuant to contracts mithiple
research institutions, clinical research organiwetj and other vendors that conduct and manageatlinials on our
behalf. The financial terms of these agreementsuaiogct to negotiation and vary from contractdgatcact and may
result in uneven payment flows. Generally, thesea@ments set forth the scope of work to be perfdraie fixed
fee or unit price. Payments under the contractewmgon factors such as the successful enrollmegpatignts or the
completion of clinical trial milestones. Expensekated to clinical trials generally are accruedeoiasn contracted
amounts applied to the level of patient enrollmemd activity according to the protocol. If timel#ner contracts are
modified based upon changes in the clinical triatqcol or scope of work to be performed, we modify estimate
accordingly on a prospective basis.

In addition, we have several contracts that extardss multiple reporting periods, including ougést
contract representing a $242,000 clinical trial. k&eognize expenses as the services are providsdgnt to
management’s assessment of the progress that éasrazle to date. Such contracts require an assaissfibe
work that has been completed during the perioduding measurement of progress, analysis of datijtistifies thi
progress and management’s judgment. Based on Cgnep@erience and management’s intimate involvemeiit
these outsourced contracts, it is reasonably likedy we may experience a 3% variance in our estimithe work
completed. A 3% variance in our estimate of thelwammpleted in our largest contract could incre@sgecrease
our operating expenses by $7,000, which would eptasent a material change to historically repamedlts of
operations.

Inventory

Inventory consists of our Cumulase product andHbdenex API. Inventory primarily represents raw eréls
used in production, work in process, and finishedds inventory on hand, valued at actual cost.ltonges are
reviewed periodically for slow-moving or obsoletatss. If a launch of a new product is delayedemtery may not
be fully utilized and could be subject to impairrpeat which point we would record a reserve to stioventory to
its net realizable value.

The above listing is not intended to be a comprsiverist of all of our accounting policies. In nyacases, the
accounting treatment of a particular transactiospiscifically dictated by U.S. GAAP. There are aseas in which
our management’s judgment in selecting any avalalibrnative would not produce a materially diéferresult.
Please see our audited financial statements ared tligreto included elsewhere in our Annual Report
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006¢hvbontain accounting policies and other disclasveguired
by U.S. GAAP.

Results of Operations — Comparison of Years Ended &ember 31, 2006 and 2005

Revenues— Product sales were $671,000 for the year endedDber 31, 2006 compared to $127,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of $82490 428%. Cumulase product sales were $342,00
$127,000 and sales of the API for Hylenex were $32®and $0 for the years ended December 31, 20d&@@05,
respectively.
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Revenues under collaborative agreements increas®d14,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 $0
for the year ended December 31, 2005. Revenues aoli@borative agreements primarily consist of the
amortization of the upfront fee from Roche and aesie and development payments from Baxter.

Cost of Sales— Cost of sales were $437,000 for the year endszkBber 31, 2006 compared to $52,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase88{@#B0, or 740%. This increase was due to the aserén
product sales for Cumulase and the API for Hylenex.

Research and Development Research and development expenses were $9i@mfdk the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to $10.2 million forythar ended December 31, 2005. Our research amdogeven
expenses consisted primarily of costs associatddthe development and manufacturing of our prodaotlidates,
compensation and other expenses for research aetbdeent personnel, supplies and materials, ¢osts
consultants and related contract research, facitists, amortization and depreciation. Researcldamndlopment
expenses decreased by $1.0 million, primarily dudeicreased contract manufacturing, analytical saaoility cost:
related to the development and production of owRH20 enzyme of $1.5 million and decreased contesgtarch
studies of $1.6 million, primarily due to a Chemaph toxicology study of $1.0 million performed @08, and
decreased consulting fees of $200,000, partiafisedby higher clinical trial costs of $1.0 millipimcreased
compensation costs of $650,000 and share-basedecsaon costs of $425,000. We expect research and
development costs to increase in future periodseamcrease our research efforts, expand our eliials, and
continue to develop and manufacture our producticktes.

Selling, General and Administrative- Selling, general and administrative expensegweér9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006 compared to $3.4omfllir the year ended December 31, 2005. Selliagel an
administrative expenses increased by $3.5 milliamarily related to increased compensation cost568,000,
share-based compensation expenses of $850,008agatt recruiting costs of $251,000, increased gsfeal fees
of $900,000 mainly associated with increased legatlices related to collaborative agreements arreéased audit
and consulting fees related to internal controlsudieentation and testing under the Sarbanes-Oxl¢p#2002. In
addition, marketing costs increased $800,000 dimegpily to our share of Hylenex pre-launch markgtaxpenses.
As a result of our recently amended agreementsBattier, we do not anticipate to incur any addaiddylenex
marketing expenses.

Share-Based Compensaties Through 2005, we accounted for our stock plasisgithe intrinsic value
method and recorded no stock based compensatiapfions granted to employees. Effective at thartreéngg of
2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accourtitamdards No. 123(R) (“SFAS 123(R)"phare-Based
Paymen” and elected to adopt the modified prospective apfitin method. SFAS No. 123(R) requires us to use a
fair-valued based method to account for share-besegbensation. Accordingly, share-based compemsatst is
measured at the grant date, based on the fair edlile award, and is recognized as expense oeartiployees’
requisite service period. Total compensation amsblir share-based payments for the year endedhiiege3l,
2006 was $1.3 million. Selling, general and adntiats/e expense and research and development expenthe
year ended December 31, 2006 include s-based compensation of $850,000 and $425,000,ceaplg. As of
December 31, 2006, $2.2 million of total unrecogdizompensation costs related to nonvested awarigected
to be recognized over a weighted average peridd®§ears. See Note 2, “Significant Accounting €le§ —
Change in Accounting Method for Share-Based Comgténs’ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stetats
for further discussion.

Interest and Other Income and Expenselnterest and other income was $831,000 for tra ¢nded
December 31, 2006 compared to $286,000 for thegmded December 31, 2005. The increase in othemaavas
due to higher interest income as a result of maiime higher average cash balances during 2006aitieipate
increases in other income due to increases inaslr and cash equivalents.

Net Loss— Net loss for the year ended December 31, 20@6%44.8 million, or $0.24 per common share,
compared to $13.3 million, or $0.26 per common sliar the year ended December 31, 2005. The inelieaset
loss was due to an increase in operating expenses.
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Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 200

Revenues— Product sales were $127,000 for the year endedDber 31, 2005 and consisted of sales of
Cumulase, which we launched in June 2005, compar8@ for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Cost of Sales— Cost of sales were $52,000 for the year endezeidber 31, 2005, compared to $0 for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

Research and Development Research and development expenses were $10i@nfdr the year ended
December 31, 2005 compared to $6.5 million forytear ended December 31, 2004. Research and dewstdpm
expenses increased by $3.7 million primarily dugtoeased contract manufacturing, analytical, stability costs
related to the completion of Cumulase 510(k) rezraints, the completion of Hylenex chemistry manufang and
controls work and the completion of Chemophasectigpy work totaling approximately $1.0 million gniring of
additional research and development personneltiegumh increased compensation costs of $1.6 mijlincreased
clinical trial costs of $300,000 and increasedrgmfee payments of $300,000.

Selling, General and Administrative- General and administrative expenses were $3lbmfor the year
ended December 31, 2005 compared to $2.6 milliothi® year ended December 31, 2004. General and
administrative expenses increased by $800,000altreethiring of additional administrative personaet! increased
legal fees.

Interest and Other Income and Expenselnterest and other income was $286,000 for #a ynded
December 31, 2005 compared to other expense 00®4c0 the year ended December 31, 2004. The iseren
other income was due to higher interest incomerasut of maintaining higher average cash baladaeisg 2005.

Net Loss— Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2065$48.3 million, or $0.26 per common share,
compared to $9.1 million, or $0.26 per common sliar¢he year ended December 31, 2004. The inclieaset los
was due to an increase in operating expensesgtiafieour increased research and development sféord
additional personnel costs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalesres $44.2 million versus $19.1 million as of
December 31, 2005, an increase of $25.1 millioris Tritrease resulted primarily from the $20.0 roilliinitial up
front payment received from Roche, $11.0 milliomet proceeds from the sale of common stock to Boahd net
proceeds from the exercise of warrants and stotikropof $7.3 million during the year ended Decengik 2006,
offset by our net cash used in operations andhpurchase of property and equipment for the geded
December 31, 2006.

Operating activities

Net cash provided by operations was $7.1 milliorirduthe year ended December 31, 2006 compared to
$13.0 million of cash used in operations duringytbar ended December 31, 2005. This change watdhe
$20.0 million initial up front payment received finoRoche in 2006 of which $19.9 million was recordsdleferred
revenue.

Net cash used in operations was $13.0 million dutire year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
$7.7 million of cash used in operations duringytear ended December 31, 2004. This increase watodre
increase in our research and development effodsadditional personnel.

Investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $365M@thg the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to
$351,000 during the year ended December 31, 20S.Was due to the increased purchase of propedy a
equipment during 2006.
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Net cash used in investing activities was $351@@thg the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
$228,000 during the year ended December 31, 20ti4.Was due to the increased purchase of propedy a
equipment during 2005.

Financing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $18iBion during the year ended December 31, 2008us
$16.5 million during the year ended December 30520 December 2006, we sold common stock for
approximately $11.0 million, net of issuance co8tiditionally, we received approximately $7.3 naliiin net
proceeds from warrant and stock option exercisesglthe year ended December 31, 2006.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1@ibion during the year ended December 31, 2005us
$23.4 million during the year ended December 30420h December 2005, we received proceeds fronsdteof
common stock for $16.0 million, net of issuancetsoadditionally, we received $450,000 in procerdsn warrant
and stock option exercises during the year endegiber 31, 2005. In January 2004, we sold comnuuk stnd
warrants to purchase common stock for $7.8 milliget,of issuance costs. In October 2004, we saithoon stock
and warrants to purchase common stock for $12.lfomilnet of issuance costs. Additionally, we reeel
$2.9 million in proceeds from warrant exercisesmythe year ended December 31, 2004.

We expect our cash requirements to increase signifly as we continue to increase our research and
development for, seek regulatory approvals of, @@gelop and manufacture our current product cabedéds we
expand our research and development efforts aralipwdditional product opportunities, we anticipagmificant
cash requirements for hiring of personnel, cagitglenditures and investment in additional intesyatems and
infrastructure. The amount and timing of cash rezaents will depend on the research, developmesmufacture,
regulatory and market acceptance of our produdfidates, if any, and the resources we devote gareking,
developing, manufacturing, commercializing and suppg our product candidates.

We believe that our current cash and cash equitsaleill be sufficient to fund our operations forla@ast the
next twelve months. Until we can generate signifiaczash from our operations, we expect to contioifend our
operations with existing cash resources that weneguily generated from the proceeds from our ré€&ache and
Baxter collaborations. We may finance future casbds through the sale of other equity securitfesekercise of
our callable warrants, strategic collaboration agrents, debt financing, or any combination of thredoing. On
June 10, 2005, we filed a shelf registration statenon Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-125731), Whias
declared effective on June 17, 2005, which willnpieus, from time to time, to offer and sell up®60 million of
equity or debt securities. We currently have thiéitglo issue debt and equity securities for agregate of
$32.5 million under our shelf registration stateim®¥ie cannot be certain that our existing cashcasth equivalents
will be adequate or that additional financing vaié available when needed or that, if availablerfaing will be
obtained on terms favorable to us or our stockhslddaving insufficient funds may require us toayelscale back
or eliminate some or all of our research and dgpraknt programs or delay the launch of our prodant@ates. If
we raise additional funds by issuing equity se@sjtsubstantial dilution to existing stockholdewsuld likely result
If we raise additional funds by incurring debt ficing, the terms of the debt may involve significeash payment
obligations as well as covenants and specific fir@matios that may restrict our ability to operatur business.

Off-Balance Sheet ArrangementsAs-of December 31, 2006, we did not have any wtatiips with
unconsolidated entities or financial partnershipgsh as entities often referred to as structureghfie or special
purpose entities, which would have been establistrethe purpose of facilitating off-balance shastngements or
other contractually narrow or limited purposesatidition, we do not engage in trading activitiegiring non-
exchange traded contracts. As such, we are notialfteexposed to any financing, liquidity, marlkatcredit risk
that could arise if we had engaged in these relships.
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Contractual Obligations— As of December 31, 2006, future minimum paymeilois under our contractual
obligations are as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

Total Less than 1 Yeal 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Atfter 5 Years

Operating lease $ 410,000 $ 410,00 $ — 9 — 3 —
License payment $2,750,000 % 300,00(  $600,00(  $600,00( $1,250,00
Purchase obligatior $ 303,000 $ 303,000 $ — 3 — 3 —
Total $3,463,000 $ 1,013,000 $600,000 $600,00( $1,250,00i

As of December 31, 2006, we had no long-term debapital lease obligations.

Our future capital uses and requirements depenmtuorerous forward-looking factors. These factors may
include, but are not limited to, the following:

« the rate of progress and cost of research and @@weint activities
« the number and scope of our research activi

« the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending andecihg any patent claims and other intellectuapprty
rights;

 our ability to establish and maintain product diseny and development collaboratiol

« the effect of competing technological and marketettgoments

« the terms and timing of any collaborative, licegsamd other arrangements that we may establistk
« the extent to which we acquire o-license new products, technologies or busine:

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Pies — Recent Accounting Pronouncemernitsthe Note
to Consolidated Financial Statements for a disomssf recent accounting pronouncements and thigicteff any,
on the Company.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk.

Our primary exposure to market risk is interesbme sensitivity, which is affected by changes mdleneral
level of U.S. interest rates, particularly becatieemajority of our investments are in short-terierketable
securities. The primary objective of our investmectivities is to preserve principal while at tlzere time
maximizing the income we receive from our investtaawithout significantly increasing risk. Some bétsecurities
that we invest in may be subject to market riskisTheans that a change in prevailing interest mat@eg cause the
value of the investment to fluctuate. For examiflere purchase a security that was issued witkkedfinterest rate
and the prevailing interest rate later rises, #lee of our investment will probably decline. Tonmiize this risk,
we intend to continue to maintain our portfoliocaish equivalents and short-term investments irriatyaof
securities including commercial paper, money maiiketls and government and non-government debt isiesuin
general, money market funds are not subject to etaik because the interest paid on such fundsuities with th
prevailing interest rate. As of December 31, 200€ did not have any holdings of derivative finahociacommodity
instruments, or any foreign currency denominataddactions, and all of our cash and cash equivalestte in
money market funds and other highly liquid investise

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Da

Our financial statements are annexed to this rdgEginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffeer
and principal financial officer, we conducted amlenation of our disclosure controls and proceduaessuch term is
defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated undeStdwmurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlcbdhge
Act). Based on this evaluation, our principal exaeuofficer and our principal financial officer soluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectvef@he end of the period covered by this Annugpdtt.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporthg

There have been no significant changes in ournaterontrols over financial reporting that occurceaing the
quarter ended December 31, 2006, that have mayeaifédcted, or are reasonably likely to materiaffect our
internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahcia
reporting. Internal control over financial repogiis defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and Rule 15d-15¢frpulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as aggsdesigned by, or under the supervision of, oocipal
executive and principal financial officers and efézl by our board of directors, management and gigsonnel, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation ivfaincial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting principles and dretuthose
policies and procedures that:

« Pertain to the maintenance of records that in regtde detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@ctions an
dispositions of our asse!

« Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@eled as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iah
statements in accordance with generally accepteauating principles, and that receipts and expengkt ar
being made only in accordance with authorizatidnsuo management and directors; ¢

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ose
disposition of our assets that could have a mateffiact on our financial statemen

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or déte
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation afatiffeness to future periods are subject to thethiat controls
may become inadequate because of changes in amglitir that the degree of compliance with thecpesi or
procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of Det®m31,
2006. In making this assessment, our managemedtthseriteria set forth by the Committee of Spoimgp
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOpternal Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment, management concludeddhudtDecember 31, 2006, our internal control over
financial reporting is effective based on thoséecia.

The independent registered public accounting fiat udited the consolidated financial statemérasare
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K hasiegssan audit report on our internal control oveaficial
reporting and on our assessment of our internatabaver financial reporting. The report appeagtolw.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, inclodbd accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Halozyme fEtpeutics, Inc. maintained effective internal cohtiver
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, basedriteria established in Internal Control — Intted
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (the COS@riai).
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.’s management is resplenfor maintaining effective internal control oviemancial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reporting.r@esponsibility is
to express an opinion on management’s assessneanaopinion on the effectiveness of the compaimgérnal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8oa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control daincial reporting, evaluating management’s assest, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectisgoéinternal control, and performing such othecpdures as v
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdliat our audit provides a reasonable basisubopinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Iajpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementadcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréwdipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonasdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, managemestassessment that Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. aiaéu effective internal contr
over financial reporting as of December 31, 208@airly stated, in all material respects, basethenCOSO
criteria. Also, in our opinion, Halozyme Therapestilnc. maintained, in all material respects,@fe internal
control over financial reporting as of December 106, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance shddatifzyme Therapeutics, Inc. as of December 31, 2806 the
related consolidated statements of operations, ftesk and stockholders’ equity for the year theded of
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and our report datecci&, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereo

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 5, 2007
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Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registral

The information required by this item regardingediors is incorporated by reference to our DefinifProxy
Statement to be filed with the Securities and ErgeaCommission in connection with our 2007 Annuaietihg of
Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”) under the imeatElection of Directors.” The information reqeit by this
item regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of #eeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedc@porated
by reference to the information under the captiGorhpliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Actitained in
the Proxy Statement. The information required liy ilem regarding our code of ethics is incorpatdig reference
to the information under the caption “Code of Eshicontained in our Proxy Statement.

Executive Officers

Jonathan E. Lim, M.D. (35)President, Chief Executive Officer and Direcfr. Lim joined Halozyme in
2003. From 2001 to 2003, Dr. Lim was a managememswtant at McKinsey & Company, where he speaidlin
the health care industry, serving a wide rangdast-sips to Fortune 500 companies in the biophaeuwnazal,
medical products, and payor/provider segments. Fr®89 to 2001, Dr. Lim was a recipient of a Natidnatitutes
of Health Postdoctoral Fellowship, during which¢iime conducted clinical outcomes research at HauMadical
School. He has published articles in peer-reviemedical journals such as the Annals of Surgerythadlournal of
Refractive Surgery. Dr. Lim’s prior experience allscudes two years of clinical training in genesatgery at the
New York Hospite-Cornell Medical Center and Memorial Sloan-Kettgribancer Center; Founder and President of
a health care technology start-up; Founding EditeChief of the McGill Journal of Medicine; and basic scieranc
clinical research at the Salk Institute for Biolog)i Studies and Massachusetts Eye and Ear Infirrarntim is
currently a California — licensed physician andwdker surgeon in his spare time. He was a menilibeo
strategic planning committee of the American Meld#issociation from 2002 to 2005. Dr. Lim earned BiS, with
honors, and MS degrees in molecular biology froanfatrd University, his MD degree from McGill Unigty, and
his MPH degree in health care management from Hataiversity.

Gregory |. Frost, Ph.D. (35)Vice President & Chief Scientific Officer and Bator. Dr. Frost co-founded
Halozyme in 1999 and has spent more than twelvesyeaearching the hyaluronidase family of enzyrresm
1998 to 1999, he was a Senior Research Scientis¢ &idney Kimmel Cancer Center (SKCC), wheredoaiged
much of his work developing the hyaluronidase tebbay. Prior to SKCC, his research in the Departhoén
Pathology at the University of California, San Fiano, led directly to the purification, cloningydacharacterizatic
of the human hyaluronidase gene family, and theodisry of several metabolic disorders. He has aathmultiple
scientific peer-reviewed and invited articles ie tyaluronidase field and is an inventor on sevieeglpatents.

Dr. Frost’s prior experience includes serving asiantific consultant to a number of biopharmaaalttompanies,
including Q-Med (SE), Biophausia AB (SE), and AetiBiotech (SE). Dr. Frost is registered to practietore the
US Patent Trademark Office, and earned his BA achxemistry and molecular biology from the Universit
California, Santa Cruz, and his Ph.D. in the depent of Pathology at the University of Californ&an Francisco,
where he was an ARCS-Scholar.

David A. Ramsay, MBA (42)ice President & Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Raay joined Halozyme in 2003
and has 20 years of corporate financial experispe@ning several industries. From 2000 to 2003vd®Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer of Lathian Syste a provider of technology-based sales solufionte life
sciences industry. Prior to Lathian, Mr. Ramsay tis@sVice President, Treasurer of ICN Pharmacelsticaw
called Valeant Pharmaceuticals International, aimational, specialty pharmaceutical company. ManiRay joine:
ICN in 1998 from ARCO, where he spent four yeargarious financial roles, most recently servindgvasager of
Financial Planning & Analysis for the company’sdQ7station West Coast Retail Marketing NetworkoPto
ARCO, he served as Vice President, Controller fxusity Pacific Asian Bank, a subsidiary of SeguRgcific
Corporation. He began his career as an Auditoredifde & Touche, where he obtained his CPA license
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Mr. Ramsay serves on the Board of Directors for@dvax_ife Sciences, Inc., a privately held, worldevigsearch
reagent company. He is also Chairman of the Audin@ittee of Axxora. Mr. Ramsay graduated from the
University of California, Berkeley, with a BS degrin Business Administration and earned his MBArdegvith a
dual major in Finance and Strategic Management ffbeWharton School at the University of Pennsyilaan

Richard C. Yocum, M.D. (51)Vice President of Clinical Development and MetigHiairs. Dr. Yocum has
over 23 years of professional experience in clirdcag development, project team management, elim&search
trial design and implementation, and the practiogemeral internal medicine. His experience spdipzhases of
clinical development, including IND submissionsaBa I, Il, lll, and IV trials; multinational clinéd trials; NDA,
NDS and MAA preparation and submissions, inclugingven successes with multiple NDA and MAA appre
and new product launches; FDA advisory panel mgstamnd CHMP Oral Hearing; and lifecycle management.
Dr. Yocum'’s broad-based training and experiendatiernal Medicine has enabled him to successfeldldrug
development efforts in multiple therapeutic aréasluding oncology, dermatology, cardiovasculamriomology,
endocrinology, and gastroenterology. Prior to Hgfoa, from May 2002 to March 2005, Dr. Yocum waseVic
President of Clinical Development and Medical Affaét Chugai Pharma USA, LLC (CPUSA), a membehef t
Chugai-Roche group. From 1995 to 2002, Dr. Yocura mesponsible for the clinical development of saler
retinoid-based drugs for the treatment of varicarscers and benign dermatological diseases at Ligand
Pharmaceuticals, where he was involved in the agbiaf seven of seven new drug registration dossard served
most recently as Executive Medical Director of @& Development. From 1993 to 1995, Dr. Yocum was
employed in the Clinical Research department atstaedr. Yocum is board-certified in general inedrmedicine,
and maintained a clinical practice for nine yea®ole transitioning to the pharmaceutical indudtig.received his
AB in Chemistry from Dartmouth College, his M.Dofn Johns Hopkins University, and completed his weddi
residency at the University of California, San ieg

Don A. Kennard (60) Vice President of Regulatory Affairs & Quality #«grance. Mr. Kennard joined
Halozyme in 2004 and brings to Halozyme nearly 88rg of professional senior management experientei
fields of regulatory affairs (RA), clinical progranand quality assurance (QA). He has worked dyr@gth the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA), as wellragulatory authorities of various foreign minisgiof health,
to secure registration, authorize commercializateord successfully implement quality programs agftwroad range
and extensive number of product approvals acroaediceuticals, biologics, medical devices, andrdiatics. Pric
to Halozyme, Mr. Kennard was Vice President of Waitle RA/QA at Quidel, Inc., a manufacturer of diagtic
products, where he led the RA/QA and Clinical fimts, while also establishing a Quality System Cdtkimg
program that enabled Quidel to expand and sussés $n the European Union. From 1991 to 2001, &g Mice
President of RA/QA/R&D for Nobel Biocare, Inc. aBteri-Oss (acquired by Nobel Biocare), where heatiéd all
regulatory affairs, quality assurance, clinicalsj and R&D activities. From 1981 to 1991, Mr. iKkand was
Director of RA/QA at Allergan, Inc., where he dited regulatory affairs, quality assurance and tyabntrol in the
development and manufacture of prescription and Opi@halmic and dermatological drugs, injectablegdr
biotechnology products, and ophthalmic productirRo Allergan, he was Director of Quality Contadl B. Braun.
Mr. Kennard holds a BS degree in Microbiology.

Robert L. Little (57) Vice President & Chief Commercial Officer. Mr.tll¢ joined Halozyme in 2006 and
brings to Halozyme over 30 years of general managénsommercial operations, and finance experiéndee
pharmaceutical industry. From 2003 to 2006, Mrtl&itvas Senior Vice President, Commercial Operatan
Neurocrine Biosciences, where he was responsibleuitding and managing the Compi's sales and marketing
functions. During his tenure, Mr. Little put in pka fully integrated commercial organization, inthg a marketin
team, a 200 person CNS sales force, and full lisgisand infrastructure support, in order to idifizo-detail Zoloft
with Pfizer, and to later launch Indiplon. From 38 2003, Mr. Little was at Pharmacia, Inc. whigisemost recent
position was Group Vice President, Diversified Rraid. His responsibilities included managing Phaiaia
Diversified Products business, as well as formimgwa global business unit merging pricing, reimeurent, and
health outcomes groups to focus on current indusswyes, pricing, and drug values. From 1999 tdl 284. Little
was Group Vice President, Specialty Products antidwide head of a $2.5 hillion, global specialtpg@ucts
business (Ophthalmology, Endocrinology, Neurolagyd others). Mr. Little previously held a numbeipokitions
within Pharmacia, including President and Manaddigctor of Pharmacia in Milan, Italy, President of
Pharmacia & UpJohn in Canada, and President ofnfdwa, Inc. in Canada. Prior to joining
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Pharmacia, he held positions at Adria Laborataaies$ Miles Laboratories/Bayer A.G. in the U.K., ytadnd the
United States. Mr. Little earned his degree in eooies and finance from the West London Busines®8¢lkaling
Technical College.

William Fallon (50), Vice President, Manufacturing & Operations. Mallén joined Halozyme in 2006. He
was previously President and Chief Executive Offaxed a member of the board of directors of Cytcean
Biologics, a contract manufacturing organizatioat forovides manufacturing and development serticése
biotechnology industry. At Cytovance, Mr. Fallonessaw the design, construction, and validation of a
state-of-the-art, greenfield cGMP manufacturingliigc From 2001 to 2003, he was Vice PresidenTethnical
Operations at Genzyme Corporation, having held#me position at Novazyme Pharmaceuticals, Inor piits
$138 million acquisition by Genzyme in 2001. Hengdl Novazyme and Genzyme from Transkaryotic Thegpi
where he was VP of Manufacturing from 1998 to 2@&dbm 1993 through 1998, he was employed in several
management positions for the Ares-Serono Groumioalting in the position of Vice President, US M&aaturing
Operations. In this role, he served as general genaverseeing the production and distributioalbbf Serono’s
approved biotechnology products. From 1990 to 1882yas Director of Manufacturing for Centocor,.lHds prior
experience also includes various management andtigeal roles at Invitron Corporation and Travef@nentech
Diagnostics. Mr. Fallon earned a B.S. degree inilndaBcience and a B.A. degree in Biology from Lésignd
University and an M.S. degree in Biology from Nedistern University.

Item 11. Executive Compensatior

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference to the information under the captio
“Executive Compensation” contained in the Proxyt&teent.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afhnagement and Related Stockholder Matte

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to the information under the capt®ecurity
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Manageraed Related Stockholder Matters” contained é@Rhoxy
Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to the information under the capt@ertain
Relationships and Related Transactions” containegtlé Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the information under the captio
“Principal Accounting Fees and Services” contaiimethe Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits.

The following documents are filed as part of thisnal Report:

(a) Financial Statements and Schedules:

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiiimpp — Ernst & Young LLP F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiiingn — Cacciamatta Accountancy Corporat F-2
Consolidated Financial Statemer
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2@D8G0% F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2006, 2005 and Z F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 31, 2006, 2005 and Z F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 20@52004 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-7

(b) Exhibits:

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatiorfilad with the Nevada Secretary of State on May 4,

3.2
3.3
4.1

1C0.1
10.2*
10.3*
10.4*
105
10.6
10.7*
1C.8
10.9
1C.10

1C.11

1C.12*
1C.13*
10.14*

1C.15
1C.16*

1C.17

2006(1)

Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rigithe terms of the Series A Preferred Stoc
Bylaws as Amended(-

Rights Agreement between Corporate Stock Tranagerights agent, and Registrant, dated May 4, 2006
1)

License Agreement between University of Connecticut Registrant, dated November 15, 200
Agreement for Services between Avid Bioservices, &md Registrant, dated November 19, 200
Distribution Agreement between MidAtlantic Diagniost Inc. and Registrant, dated January 30, 20(
Distribution Agreement between MediCult AS and Re&gint, dated February 9, 2004

2004 Stock Plan and Form of Option Agreement thatet(4)

Form of Indemnity Agreement for Directors and ExewiOfficers(4)

Exclusive Distribution Agreement between Baxter lttemare and Registrant, dated August 13, 200
Form of Callable Stock Purchase Warran

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warran

DeliaTroph Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2001 Amended aggtdRed Stock Plan and form of Stock Option
Agreements for options assumed thereundk

Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement With Andrew Kitn

Commercial Supply Agreement with Avid Bioservicks;. and Registrant, dated February 16, 200
Development and Supply Agreement with Baxter Healté Corporation and Registrant, dated Marc!
2005(9)

First Amendment to the Exclusive Distribution Agmeent between Baxter Healthcare Corporation and
Registrant, dated March 24, 2005

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2005 Outside Direr Stock Plan(10

Second Amendment to the Exclusive Distribution Agnent between Baxter Healthcare Corporatior
Registrant, dated December 8, 2005(

Placement Agent Agreement, dated as of Decemb&(l&, between Registrant, SG Cowen & Co.,
LLC, Rodman & Renshaw, LLC and Roth Capital Pagnet.C(12)
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1C0.18 Placement Agent Agreement, dated as of Decembe&Ql%, between Registrant, SG Cowen & Co.,
LLC, Rodman & Renshaw, LLC and Roth Capital Pagnet.C(13)

1C.19 First Amendment to the License Agreement betweerdisity of Connecticut and Registrant, dated
January 9, 2006(1¢

1C.20 Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2006 Stock Plan

10.21 First Amendment to Standard Industrial Net Lease/@en Registrant and Sorrento Square, dated as of
July 1, 2006(17

10.22 Second Amendment to Standard Industrial Net Leatgden Registrant and Sorrento Square, datec
July 1, 2006(17

10.23 Form of Stock Option Agreement (2005 Outside Diwes’ Stock Plan)(18

1C.24 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2005 Outside®or’ Stock Plan)(18

1C.25 Form of Stock Option Agreement (2006 Stock Plan)

10.26 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2006 Stock JP1a)

1C.27* License and Collaboration Agreement between F.affn-La Roche Ltd, Hoffmanbha Roche Inc. an
Registrant dated December 5, 2006(

1C0.28 Stock Purchase Agreement between Roche FinancanidtdRegistrant, dated December 5, 2006

1C.29* First Amendment to the Commercial Supply Agreeniittveen Avid Bioservices, Inc. and Registrant,
dated December 15, 2006 (-

10.30* Amended and Restated Exclusive Distribution Agresrbetween Baxter Healthcare Corporation, B
Healthcare S.A. and Registrant, dated Februarg@d@7(21)

10.31* Amended and Restated Development and Supply Agredmeéveen Baxter Healthcare Corporation,
Baxter Healthcare S.A. and Registrant, dated Feprir 2007(21

10.32* License and Collaboration Agreement between Baiéaithcare Corporation, Baxter Healthcare S.A.
and Registrant, dated February 14, 2007

10.33 Stock Purchase Agreement between Baxter Interradtibrc. and Registrant, dated February 14, 2007
(21)

211  Subsidiaries of Registrant(1

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing— Ernst & Young LLP

23.2  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing — Cacciamatta Accountancy Corporat

31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 302 of 8arbane-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2  Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 302 of 8sbane-Oxley Act of 200z

321  Certification of CEO pursuant to Section 906 of 8s¥bane-Oxley Act of 200z

32.2  Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 906 of Sabane-Oxley Act of 200z

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed May 8, 2006

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s GurReport on Form 8-K, filed December 14, 2004, and
Exhibit 99.2 of Registra’s Current Report cForm &K, filed July 6, 2005

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Reggisn Statement on Form SBfilzd with the Commissio
on April 23, 2004

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s ammeamd number two to the Registration Statement on
Form SE-2 filed with the Commission on July 23, 20(

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Quarterly Report on For1C-QSB,filed November 12, 200
(6) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed October 15, 200¢

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Resgien Statement on Form S-8 filed with the Conwsiuis
on October 26, 200«

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed February 22, 200!
(9) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm &K, filed March 30, 2005
(10) Incorporated by reference to the Regis’s Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed July 6, 2005
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(11) Incorporated by reference to the Regist’s Annual Report oForm 1(-KSB, filed March 24, 2006
(12) Incorporated by reference to the Regis’s Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed December 13, 200!
(13) Incorporated by reference to the Regis’s Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed December 14, 200!
(14) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed January 12, 2001

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Regis’’s Annual Report on Fori1C-KSB/A, filed March 29, 2005
(16) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed March 24, 2006

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Regis's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed August 8, 200€

(18) Incorporated by reference to the Regis’'s Quarterly Report on For1C-Q, filed August 8, 2006
(19) Incorporated by reference to the Regis’s Current Report on For8-K/A, filed December 15, 200!
(20) Incorporated by reference to the Regis's Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed December 21, 2001
(21) Incorporated by reference to the Registr’ Current Report on Fori8-K/A, filed February 20, 200°

* Confidential treatment has been requested foriogptattions of this exhibit. These portions haveie
omitted from this agreement and have been fileduisagply with the Securities and Exchange Commis!
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg@ Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causedéeport
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedénGhty of San Diego, on March 9, 2007.

Date: March 9, 2007

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.,
a Nevada corporation

/s/ Jonathan E. Lir

Jonathan E. Lim, M.D.
President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know all persons by these presents, that each perhose signature appears below constitutes anuirgpp
Jonathan E. Lim and David A. Ramsay, and eacheshtlas his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact anehnag; with
full power of substitution and resubstitution, fom and in his name, place, and stead, in any hicdgacities, to
sign any and all amendments to this Annual Repod, to file the same, with all exhibits theretog ather
documents in connection therewith, with the Semgiand Exchange Commission, granting unto said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of thehp&wer and authority to do and perform each aratesct and
thing requisite and necessary to be done in coimrettierewith, as fully to all intents and purpossshe might or
could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirmihgt all said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or@frthem or their
or his substitute or substituted, may lawfully dacause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoA&033, as amended, this Annual Report has beaediby
the following persons in the capacities and ondiies indicated.

Signature

/s/ Jonathan E. Lim, M.L

Jonathan E. Lim, M.C

/s/ David A. Ramsa

David A. Ramsa

/sl Gregory I. Frost, Ph.I

Gregory |. Frost, Ph.C
/sl Kenneth J. Kelle

Kenneth J. Kelle
/sl Robert L. Engler, M.C

Robert L. Engler, M.D
/s/ John S. Patton, Ph.

John S. Patton, Ph.l
/sl Steven T. Thornta

Steven T. Thornto

/s/ Connie MatsL

Connie Matsu

Title

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Vice President and Chief Scientific Officer,
Director
Chairman of the Board
Director
Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 9, 200°

March 9, 200

March 9, 200

March 9, 200°

March 9, 200

March 9, 200°

March 9, 200

March 9, 200°
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. as of
December 31, 2006, and the related consolidatéehséats of operations, cash flows and stockholdsrsity for
the year then ended. These financial statementhamesponsibility of the Company’s management. Ou
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8oa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢@sa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurerifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditigges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated
financial position of Halozyme Therapeutics, IncDacember 31, 2006, and the consolidated restits o
operations and its cash flows for the year therednith conformity with U.S. generally accepted acting
principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Findistetements, effective January 1, 2006 the Company
changed its method of accounting for share-basgch@ats in accordance with Statement of Financialodoting
Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 2004), “Sharee@&ayment.”

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the effectiveness of Halozyme apeutics, Inc.’s internal control over financigbogting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria establishédennal Control — Integrated Framework issuedhsy
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission and our report dated March 5, 20@resse!
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s ERNST& YOuNnG LLP

San Diego, California
March 5, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineet of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and sudryidi
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2005, and thetad consolidated statements of operations, stidkhs’
equity and cash flows for each of the years inttl®year period ended December 31, 2005. Thesediah
statements are the responsibility of the Compamgdsagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighargio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. The Company has determined tisahdat
required to have, nor were we engaged to perfomaualit of its internal control over financial reping. Our audit
included consideration of internal control overafircial reporting as a basis for designing audit@dares that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tingpse of expressing an opinion on the effectivenéshe
Company’s internal control over financial reportidgcordingly, we express no such opinion. An aatb
includes, examining, on a test basis, evidenceatipg the amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asatirg the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateta@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2008 tha results of its operations and its cash flimsach of the
years in the two year period ended December 315,468@onformity with accounting principles genéyalcceptec
in the United States of America.

/s/ CACCIAMATTA ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Irvine, California
March 12, 2006
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005

2006

2005

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $44,189,40 $ 19,132,19.
Accounts receivabl 533,38 413,82¢
Inventory 442,49; 278,95¢
Prepaid expenses and other as 428,26¢ 281,19:

Total current asse 45,593,55 20,106,17
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, ne 497,77 381,24
OTHER ASSETS — 22,83¢

Total Assets $46,091,32 $20,510,25

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl $ 2,017,390 $ 1,379,93
Accrued expense 1,011,15 669,29¢
Deferred revenu 1,221,99. 254,13t

Total current liabilities 4,250,541 2,303,36!
Deferred revenue, net of current port 18,759,54 —
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 9
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 500,000 shartb®azed; none issued and

outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 150,000,000 ancdDOO00 shares authorizec

68,736,993 and 60,246,997 shares issued and aditsfjaas of December 31,

2006 and 2005, respective 68,73’ 60,24
Additional paic-in-capital 64,111,73 44,493,89
Accumulated defici (41,099,24) (26,347,25)

Total Stockholder Equity 23,081,23 18,206,88

Total Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity $46,091,32 $20,510,25

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfiancial statements.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 209

REVENUES:
Product sale
Revenue under collaborative agreem:

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Cost of sale:

Research and developme
Selling, general and administrati
Total Expense

LOSS FROM OPERATION:!
Interest and other income (expense),

NET LOSS
Net loss per share, basic and dilu

Shares used in computing net loss per share, dadidilutec

2006

2005

2004

$ 670,62 $ 127,200 $ —
311,12 — _
981,74¢ 127,20 —
436,99( 51,96¢ —
9,214,75  10,220,07  6,517,25.
6,912,85: 3,416,57°  2,570,59!
16,564,60  13,688,62  9,087,84!
(15,582,85) (13,561,41) (9,087,84)
830,87( 286,04 (3,52)
$(14,751,98) $(13,275,37) $(9,091,37)
$ 0.24) $ (0.2 $  (0.20)
62,610,26  50,317,02  35411,12

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 209

2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $(14,751,98) $(13,275,37) $(9,091,37i)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby (used in)
operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 243,99¢ 206,34¢ 123,35(
Loss (gain) on disposal of equipmt 4,27¢ (2,200 —
Shar+based compensation expel 1,274,56 — —
Issuance of common stock and stock options for g
services 9,32 186,40:. 98,20(
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (119,559 (391,66 —
Inventory (163,539 (227,13¢) (51,82)
Prepaid expenses and other as (124,24 (217,55Y (95,86¢)
Accounts payable and accrued expel 979,31t 469,81t 1,299,85!
Deferred revenu 19,727,39 254,13t —
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 7,079,56.  (12,996,22) (7,717,65)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipm (364,799 (350,89) (227,95)
Net cash used in investing activiti (364,799 (350,89) (227,95)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of common st— net 11,043,86 16,020,80 12,716,87
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti— net 156,11« 218,42. —
Proceeds from exercise of warra— net 7,142,46! 232,36 2,862,722
Contributed capite— net — — 7,870,141
Net cash provided by financing activiti 18,342,44 16,471,60 23,449,74
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 25,057,20 3,124,48!  15,504,13
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of yei 19,132,19 16,007,71 503,58(
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of yee $44,189,40 $19,132,19 $16,007,71
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Non cash investing and financing activiti
Conversion of contributed capital to common st $ — $ — $ 7,870,141
Conversion of Series C preferred stock to commoaok: $ — — $ 1,004,48
Accrued cost for redemption of unexercised callatderants  $ 26 $ — 3 6,114

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfiancial statements.
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HALOZYME THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 209

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 200: 8,196,36: $ 8,19¢ $ 4,346,11' $ (3,980,50) $ 373,80°
Redemption of common stock, March 10,

2004 (4,296,36) (4,296 (38,007 — (42,309
Issuance of shares for merger with

DeliaTroph— net 35,521,90 35,52; 7,876,92 — 7,912,44
Issuance of common stock pursuant to

exercise of warrants, n 282,78 282 128,71¢ — 128,99¢
Exercise of callable warrants, r 1,571,68; 1,571 2,726,03 — 2,727,60
Issuance of common stock for cash, 7,925,71! 7,92¢ 12,708,94 — 12,716,87
Issuance of common stock options to

consultants for service — — 98,20( — 98,20(
Net loss — — — (9,091,377 (9,091,37))
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 200: 49,202,08 49,20z  27,846,93 (13,071,88) 14,824,25
Exercise of stock optior 620,14¢ 62C 217,80: — 218,42:
Issuance of common stock pursuant to

exercise of warrants, n 424,76¢ 42k 231,94 — 232,36
Issuance of common stock options to

consultants for service 186,40: — 186,40:

Issuance of common stock for cash, 10,000,00 10,00( 16,010,80

— 16,020,80
Net loss — — —  (13,275,37) (13,275,37)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 200! 60,246,99 60,247  44,493,89.  (26,347,25) 18,206,88
Shar-based compensation expel — — 1,274,56 — 1,274,56
Issuance of restricted common st¢ 90,00( 90 (90 — —
Issuance of common stock pursuant to
exercise of warrants, n 4,818,84 4,81¢ 7,137,65! — 7,142,46!
Issuance of common stock pursuant to
exercise of stock optior 196,15( 19¢€ 155,91¢ — 156,11«
Issuance of common stock options to
consultants for service — — 9,322 — 9,322
Issuance of common stock for cash, 3,385,001 3,38t 11,040,47 — 11,043,86
Net loss — — —  (14,751,98) (14,751,98)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 200t 68,736,99 $68,737 $64,111,73 $(41,099,24) $ 23,081,23

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Business

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. (“Halozyme,” “we” oettlCompany”) is a biopharmaceutical company deditat
to the development and commercialization of recommbi human enzymes for the drug delivery, pall@tare,
oncology, and infertility markets.

Our operations to date have been limited to orgagiand staffing the Company, acquiring, develomng
securing our technology and undertaking produceigment for our existing products and for a liditmimber of
product candidates. In June 2005, we launchedimtipfoduct, Cumulas®, a product used for in vitro fertilizatic
and transitioned from a development-stage organizéid a commercial entity.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include tw®ants of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. and its Whmlvnec
subsidiary, Halozyme, Inc. All intercompany accauand transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesi@ntonformity with U.S. generally accepted acdmgn
principles requires management to make estimaassumptions that affect the amounts reportediin o
consolidated financial statements and accompamabgs. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our es#aatd
judgments, which are based on historical and guatedd results and trends and on various other g that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstangethdl nature, estimates are subject to an intelegree of
uncertainty and, as such, actual results may diffen our estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liguestments with maturities of three months or fess the
original purchase date.

Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subjectas significant concentration of credit risk consiscash and
cash equivalents and accounts receivable. We nraimtia cash balances with one major commercial bBefosits
held with the bank may exceed the amount of insggmovided on such deposits.

We sell our products to established distributorth@pharmaceutical industry. Credit is extendezbdan an
evaluation of the customer’s financial conditiompphkoximately 68% and 91% of the accounts receivhablance as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, reptssamounts due from three customers. We evatuate
collectibility of our accounts receivable basedsovariety of factors including the length of tinee treceivables are
past due, the financial health of the customerhasidrical experience. Based upon the review ofelfactors, we
did not record an allowance for doubtful account®ecember 31, 2006 and 2005. For the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 55%, 0% and G#iadfrevenues were from Baxter and 35%, 100%084d
were from two other customers, respectively.

We rely on a single third-party manufacturer fae supply of the active pharmaceutical ingredierganh of
our current products. Payments due to this suppigesent 16% and 41% of our accounts payabladalat
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable is recorded net of an allowdacdoubtful accounts. Currently, the allowancedoubtful
accounts is zero as the collectibility of accoustsivable is reasonably assured. We are not abtiga accept fro
customers the return of products. Thus, no allowdac product returns has been established.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or maiRestt is determined on a first-in, first-out (“FIFdasis.
Inventories are reviewed periodically for slow-nmayior obsolete status. We evaluate the carryingevef
inventories on a regular basis, taking into accauish factors as historical and anticipated fusales compared to
guantities on hand, the price we expect to obt@ipfoducts in their respective markets comparet tistorical
cost and the remaining shelf life of goods on héihallaunch of a new product is delayed, inventoigy not be
fully utilized and could be subject to impairmeattwhich point we would record a reserve to adjugtntory to its
net realizable value.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Eqnipand furniture are depreciated using the strdigh
method over their estimated useful lives of threarg and leasehold improvements are amortized tisengtraight-
line method over the estimated useful life of theed or the lease term, whichever is shorter.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We account for the impairment and disposition oldived assets in accordance with Statement airtéial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144¢counting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longdd Assetdn
accordance with SFAS No. 144, long-lived assetsarewed for events of changes in circumstancégw
indicate that their carrying value may not be rezable. At December 31, 2006, there has been naiimpnt of th
value of such assets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments, including cash and cashwedgmts, accounts receivable, accounts payableaeerded
expenses, are carried at cost, which managemeaavéglapproximates fair value because of the ghari-maturity
of these instruments.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with the SE@H &ccounting Bulletin No. 104Revenue Recognition
and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue (“EITF”) Nlb20, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.
Revenue is recognized when all of the followinigecia are met: (1) persuasive evidence of amgement exists;
(2) delivery has occurred or services have beetdereal; (3) the seller’s price to the buyer is fixed determinable;
and (4) collectibility is reasonably assured.

Product Sales— We recognize Cumulase revenue when the transf@woérship occurs, upon shipment to
distributor. Accounts receivable is recorded neafillowance for doubtful accounts. Currently, dhewance for
doubtful accounts is zero as the collectibilityaetounts receivable is reasonably assured. Wecabligated to
accept returns for products. Thus, no allowance@foduct returns has been established.

Under the terms of our Baxter agreement, we wipby Baxter the active pharmaceutical ingredie®R]")
for Hylenex at our cost and Baxter will fill anchish Hylenex and hold it for subsequent distribuitiBecause of ot
continued involvement in the development and pridngrocess of Hylenex under the terms of the Supp
Agreement, the earnings process is not considerbd tomplete. Accordingly, we defer revenue aed¢hated
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

product costs resulting from transfers of the acfiharmaceutical ingredient for Hylenex to Baxtetiluhe product
is ultimately sold to customers, or otherwise dssgzh

License and Collaborative Arrangement Revenues from licensing agreements are recogtiased on the
performance requirements of the agreement. Revisrdeferred for fees received before earned. Nandzble
upfront fees, where we have an ongoing involveroemperformance obligation, are recorded as defameenue
and recognized as revenue over the contract ol@@went period. In December 2006, we entered imtoRoche
Agreement which consists of non-refundable upftimense fees, reimbursements of research and develat
services and various performance or sales milestané future product royalty payments. Due to amgaing
involvement obligation, we recorded the nonrefuneaipfront license fee received under the Rocheedigent as
deferred revenue when received in December 2006vdhide recognized over the term of the contract.

Reimbursements of research and development semiieaecognized as revenues during the period iohwh
the services are performed. Payments related ttative, performance-based milestones in a caitdive
agreement are recognized as revenue upon the aohgen of the milestones as specified in the unaeyly
agreements when they represent the culminationeoéarnings process. Royalty revenue from licepseducts wil
be recognized when earned in accordance with thestef the license agreements.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists primarily of raw materitgd-party manufacturing costs, fill and finishsts, freight
associated with the sales of Cumulase, and thdagxMylenex.

Clinical Trial and Contract Research Expenses

Research and development expenditures are charggetations as incurred in accordance with SFAS2No
Accounting for Research and Development CiOur expenses related to clinical trials are basedstimates of the
services received and efforts expended pursuamdrttsacts with multiple research institutions, idal research
organizations, and other vendors that conduct aatkige clinical trials on our behalf.

Change in Accounting Method for Share-Based Compatisn

On January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisionswiged SFAS No. 123 (“SFAS 123(R)'$hare-Based
Paymen;, including the provisions of Staff Accounting Batih No. 107 (“SAB 107"), using the modified
prospective transition method to account for oupleyee share-based awards. Under SFAS 123(R),-blasesl
compensation cost is measured at the grant datedlmm the estimated fair value of the award, amddognized as
expense over the employee’s requisite service gevite have no awards with market or performancelitions.
The valuation provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply tavrevards and to awards that are outstanding atftbetive
date and subsequently modified or cancelled. Estitheompensation expense for awards outstanditig at
effective date will be recognized over the remajrservice period using the compensation cost catiedlfor pro
forma disclosure purposes under SFAS No. 228punting for Stock-Based Compensafi@FAS 123"). Our
consolidated financial statements as of and foy#se ended December 31, 2006 reflect the impa8F&{S 123(R]
In accordance with the modified prospective tramsitnethod, our consolidated financial statementgpfior
periods were not restated to reflect, and do mdude, the impact of SFAS 123(R).

On November 10, 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staditlm No. FAS 123(R)-3Transition Election Related
to Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Paymesmards(“FAS 123(R)-3"). We have elected to adopt the
alternative transition method provided in FAS 128RFhe alternative transition method includes apdified
method to establish the beginning balance of thitiadal paid-in capital pool (“APIC pool”) relatdd the tax
effects of employee share-based compensation, vihabailable to absorb tax deficiencies recognmdssequent
to the adoption of SFAS 123(R).
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)

Share-based compensation expense recognized dine@mgriod is based on the value of the portioshafre-
based payment awards that is ultimately expecteddbduring the period. Share-based compensatipense
recognized in our consolidated statement of oparatfor the year ended December 31, 2006 includatpensatio
expense for share-based payment awards grantedgrizut not yet vested as of, December 31, 2@&®d on the
grant date fair value estimated in accordance thighpro forma provisions of SFAS 123 and shareddasgment
awards granted subsequent to December 31, 2008 badée grant date fair value estimated in accuweavith
SFAS 123(R). Share awards are amortized undetthiglst-line method. As share-based compensatiperese
recognized in the consolidated statement of opmratior the year ended December 31, 2006 is basadvards
ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduceéstmated forfeitures. SFAS 123(R) requires ftufes to be
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if asagy, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitaiiéer from those
estimates. Pre-vesting forfeitures were estimaidzktapproximately 10% for employees in the yededn
December 31, 2006 based on our historical expegiand those of our peer group. In our pro formarinktion
required under SFAS 123 for the years ended Dece®ihe005 and 2004, we accounted for forfeitusethay
occurred.

Total compensation expense related to all of oysleyee share-based awards, recognized under SFA®)1.2
for the year ended December 31, 2006 was compoistte following:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2001

Research and developmt $ 424,30!
Selling, general and administrati 850,26
Shar-based compensation expense before t 1,274,56
Related income tax benef —
Shar-based compensation expel $ 1,274,56
Net shar-based compensation expense per basic and diluaee $ 0.0z
Shar-based compensation expense fr
Stock option: $ 1,136,533
Restricted stock awart 138,03
Total $ 1,274,56

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for shasedawards to employees using the intrinsic valethad in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinliim 25,Accounting for Stock Issued to Employeasd
related interpretations and provided the requimedfprma disclosures of SFAS 123. Under the inicinalue
method, no share-based compensation expense haddoegnized in our consolidated statement of dijgera for
share-based awards to employees, because thesexgrice of our stock options granted to emplogegsled the
fair market value of the underlying stock at théedaf grant.

F-10




Table of Contents

Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.
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The following table summarizes the pro forma effattour net loss and per share data if we hadegttie fail
value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to shaaedd employee compensation for the years endedchibecesl,
2005 and 2004.

2005 2004
In thousands (except per
share data)
Net loss, as reporte $(13,277) $ (9,09))
Add: Shar-based employee compensation exp¢ — —
Deduct: Total share-based employee compensatioensgpdetermined under fair value

based method for all awar (1,22%) (1,619
Pro forma net los $(14,500  $(10,710
Net loss per share, basic and diluted, as rep $ (0.2¢0 $ (0.2¢)
Pro forma net loss per share, basic and dil $ (0.29 $ (0.30

We account for stock options granted to non-emeyr accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force
No. 9€-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issue®ther Than Employees for Acquiring, or in
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or ServigdSEITF 96-18"). Under EITF 96-18, we determine thair value of the
stock options granted as either the fair valuédhefdonsideration received or the fair value ofdfaity instruments
issued, whichever is more reliably measurable.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded in accordance with SFASLOB,Accounting for Income TaxeBhis statement
requires the recognition of deferred tax assetdiabdities to reflect the future tax consequenoésvents that have
been recognized in our financial statements orgéxns. Measurement of the deferred items is basezhacted ta
laws. In the event the future consequences ofrdifiees between financial reporting bases and tsesbaf our
assets and liabilities result in a deferred taefas-AS No. 109 requires an evaluation of the ghodlly of being
able to realize the future benefits indicated bghsassets. We record a valuation allowance to eeduc deferred
tax assets to the amount that is more likely th@rtanbe realized. We have considered future taxaigiome and
ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing tbd far the valuation allowance. In the event weenterdetermine
that we would be able to realize our deferred &sets in the future in excess of their net recoetedunts, an
adjustment to the deferred tax assets would inereasincome in the period such determination waden
Likewise, should we determine that we would noabke to realize all or part of our net deferreddasets in the
future, an adjustment to the deferred tax assetsdame charged to income in the period such deteatiin was
made.

Net Loss Per Share

In accordance with SFAS No. 12Barnings Per Shargand SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 98,
basic net loss per common share is computed bgidiyinet loss for the period by the weighted avenagmber of
common shares outstanding during the period. UB&&S No. 128, diluted net income (loss) per shmmmputed
by dividing the net income (loss) for the periodthg weighted average number of common and common
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Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Comtiied)
equivalent shares, such as stock options and warmauistanding during the period. Such commonwedgmt share
have not been included in our computation of ngs$ jper share as their effect would have been dative.

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Numeratol— Net loss $(14,751,98) $(13,275,37) $ (9,091,37)
Denominato— Weighted average shares outstanc 62,610,26 50,317,02 35,411,12
Net loss per shai $ (029 % (0.26) % (0.26)
Incremental common shares (not included becauteofanti-
dilutive nature
Stock options and awari 8,727,32. 8,535,75. 8,700,39
Stock warrant: 6,714,40. 11,561,57 11,886,34
Potential common equivaler 15,441,72 20,097,32 20,586,74

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as all chamya company’s net assets, except changesimgsuéim
transactions with shareholders. At December 31622005, and 2004 we have no reportable differehebseen
net loss and comprehensive loss.

Segment Information

We operate in one segment, which is the reseassiglopment and commercialization of recombinant &om
enzymes for the drug delivery, palliative care,@agy, and infertility markets. The chief operatidecision-makers
review our operating results on an aggregate laaslsnanage our operations as a single operatimgesgg

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretati$iN”) No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes(“FIN 487), which prescribes a recognition thresthahd measurement process for recording in thediah
statements uncertain tax positions taken or exgdotbe taken in a tax return. Additionally, FIN gié&vides
guidance on derecognition, classification, accagniin interim periods and disclosure requiremeotsihcertain ta
positions. The accounting provisions of FIN 48 Wil effective for us beginning January 1, 2007.ahéein the
process of determining the effect, if any, of thetion of FIN 48 will have on our financial statents.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value Measurement8SFAS 157”). SFAS 157
defines fair value, established a framework for sneiag fair value in generally accepted accoungirigciples and
expands disclosures about fair value measurem®h#sS 157 is effective for financial statements ésktor fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007. We daerpéct the adoption of SFAS 157 to significantfgetf our
financial condition or results of operations.

In October 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Pasititm. FAS 123R-5 (“FAS 123R-5"Amendment of FAS
Staff Position FAS 123R;10 address whether a modification of an instrunmeonnection with an equity
restructuring should be considered a modificatamplurposes of applying FAS 123Rdlassification and
Measurement of Freestanding Financial Instrumentgi@ally Issued in Exchange for Employee Serviceder
FASB Statement No. FAS 123(The provisions in FAS 123R-5 are effective for mshie quarter beginning
January 1, 2007. We do not expect the adoptiorA& E23R-5 to significantly affect our financial aition or
results of operations.
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3. Inventory

Inventory consists of our Cumulase product andHbdenex APl as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 dswst

2006 2005
Raw materialt $337,34:  $259,45.
Work in proces: 76,257 19,50¢
Finished good 28,89 —

$442,49; $278,95(

Inventory includes $49,000 and $254,000 of coste@ated with the transfer of the active pharmacalt
ingredient (“API") for Hylenex to Baxter during thy@ars ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respgctiveler
the Supply Agreement (see NoteD&ferred Revenugfor a detailed discussion on the Supply Agreeijné&niring
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2@recmgnized $344,000, $0 and $0, respectivelgodt of
goods sold related to the sale of the API for Hgleto Baxter. The Supply Agreement provides fortBaio
purchase the API and fill and finish the productdobsequent distribution to customers.

4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the followinggBecember 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005

Research equipme $ 805,077 $615,45!
Computer and office equipme 217,41¢ 149,32(
Leasehold improvemen 179,82: 148,48t
1,202,31 913,26:

Less accumulated depreciati (704,54 (532,019

$ 497,77  $ 381,24¢

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled &83,$206,348 and $123,350, for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

5. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following as ofdbaner 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
Accrued expense $ 602,14( $548,37.
Accrued compensation and payroll ta 409,01: 120,92¢

$1,011,15.  $669,29¢
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6. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of the following as ofémber 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
Collaborative agreemen $19,918,96 % —
Product sale 62,57: 254,13t
19,981,53 254,13t
Less: current portio 1,221,99. 254,13t
Long-term portion $18,75954 $ —

Roche Agreement— On December 5, 2006, we entered into a licendecallaborative agreement with F.
Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd (“LTD”) and Hoffmann-La Roch&. (“INC”) (LTD and INC, collectively, “Roche”jthe
“Roche Agreement”). Under the terms of the Rocheefgent, Roche will obtain a worldwide, exclusieehse to
develop and commercialize product combinationdHoffH20, our proprietary recombinant human hyaldase,
and up to thirteen Roche target compounds resuitorg the collaboration. Roche paid us $20 milliorbecember
2006 as an initial upfront payment for the applmaiof rHuPH20 to three pre-defined Roche bioldgigets.

Due to our continuing involvement obligations, neue from the $20 million upfront payment was defdrand
is being recognized over the term of the agreenwatrecognized $81,035 in revenue from license ifedse year
ended December 31, 2006.

Baxter Agreement— During August 2004, we entered into an Exclushstribution Agreement (the
“Distribution Agreement”) with Baxter Healthcare Qoration (“Baxter”) to market, distribute and seiflenex in
the United States and Puerto Rico. During March620@ entered into a Development and Supply Agreeitiee
“Supply Agreement”and a First Amendment to the existing Distributhgreement with Baxter. Under the term:
the agreements, Halozyme will supply Baxter thévagtharmaceutical ingredient, and Baxter will &iid finish
Hylenex and hold it for subsequent distributionDiecember 2005, Hylenex received FDA approval && in the
United States.

During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 20®%ansferred $137,000 and $254,000, respectioély,
the active pharmaceutical ingredient for HyleneB&xter for filling and finishing. Because of owrtinued
involvement in the development and production pssagf Hylenex under the terms of the Supply Agregntbe
earnings process is not considered to be completmrdingly, we defer revenue and the related pcodasts
resulting from transfers of the active pharmaceailiicgredient for Hylenex to Baxter until the pratlis ultimately
sold to customers, or otherwise disposed. Duriegyttars ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004&cagnizec
$329,000, $0 and $0, respectively, in revenueedltd the sale of the API for Hylenex to Baxter.

On February 13, 2007, we entered into an Amenddd=astated Exclusive Distribution Agreement, an
Amended and Restated Development and Supply Agneteamel an Enhanze License and Collaboration Agraeme
with Baxter. See Note 18ubsequent Events.

7. Stockholders Equity

Issuance of Common Stoek On December 5, 2006, we issued and sold to eredited investor, an affiliate
of Roche (the “Purchaser”), 3,385,000 shares (8tetes”) of our common stock at a price of $3.27spare, for
gross proceeds of approximately $11.1 million. Bhares were sold pursuant to exemptions from regjist under
Regulation D of the Securities Act. On Decembe2()6, we also entered into a registration righteament (the
“Rights Agreement”with the Purchaser, under which we may be requoedgister the Shares upon the occurre
of certain events set forth in the Rights Agreem8nth triggering events include, but are not kuhito, our
registration of shares pursuant to a registratiatement not currently in effect. The Rights Agreetrwill terminat
at such time as the Purchaser may sell the Shagey/ithree month period pursuant to the provisains
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Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as améndls of December 31, 2006, we have not filedyésteation
statement with the Securities and Exchange Comomigsiie “SEC”) covering the resale of the Shares.

On February 13, 2007 an affiliate of Baxter purehib®,070,394 shares of Halozyme’s common stochrior
aggregate of $20 million.

Also during the year ended December 31, 2006, suets an aggregate of 5,104,996 shares of our common
stock in connection with the exercises of stockchase warrants (4,818,846 shares at a weightedga/erice of
$1.48 per share), stock options (196,150 sharesv&ighted average price of $0.80 per share) astdated stock
awards (90,000 shares at a price of $0) for casheimggregate amount of approximately $7.3 million

In December 2005, we issued 10,000,000 sharesnainom stock in a registered direct offering at agper
share of $1.75, generating approximately $16,0Z1i0®et proceeds.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we isanejgregate of 1,044,914 shares of our commok stoc
connection with the exercises of warrants (424 sttsres at a weighted average price of $0.55 pee)shad stock
options (620,146 shares at a weighted average @fi$@.35 per share) for cash in the aggregate atwafu
approximately $451,000.

In January 2004, we issued 15,304,804 shares afhoonstock in a private placement at a purchase jfic
$0.4647 per share, generating approximately $7lliomin gross proceeds. In addition, we sold 786,8hares of
common stock for $1.25 per share, or $0.9 milliogiioss proceeds. Net proceeds from these traosadbtaled
approximately $7.9 million. In March 2004, we isdi#8900,000 shares of common stock in connectioim avi
reverse merger transaction with Global Yacht, In®ctober 2004, we issued 7,925,715 shares of ammstock in
a private placement at a price per share of $3&Berating approximately $12.7 million in net preds.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we isaneygregate of 1,854,462 shares of our commok stoc
connection with the exercises of stock purchaseamés at a weighted average price of $1.54 peedoarcash in
the aggregate amount of approximately $2.9 million.

Issuance of Common Stock Options for Servieefn 2006, an option to purchase 13,332 sharesiof
common stock was issued to a consultant for sesvieeeived and the stock option was valued at £9/822005,
options to purchase 50,000 shares of our commak stere issued to members of our Scientific AdwsBoard fol
services valued at $77,000 and options to purcha$H0 shares of our common stock were issuedrtsutiants fo
services valued at $109,000. In 2004, options totmse 10,000 shares of our common stock weredgsue
members of our Scientific Advisory Board value&$aB,000 and options to purchase 30,000 shareshaiom
stock were issued to consultants for services @i &65,000. These options were fully exercisahlg fully vester
on the date of grant and shall expire in ten ybased on the terms of the options. The fair vafubase options
was recorded as a noncash stock issuance cost by us

Warrants — In connection with the October 2004 private plaent, we issued warrants to purchase
2,709,542 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$2.25 per share. These warrants are exeleigabl
October 12, 2009. As of December 31, 2006 and 20@23,828 and 2,709,542, respectively, of theseants wer
outstanding.

In connection with the January 2004 private placeimge issued warrants (the “Callable Warrants”) to
purchase 8,094,829 shares of common stock at anisx@rice of $1.75 per share, as amended. Thasants are
exercisable until January 28, 2009 and are callaples under certain conditions. In December 20@4called the
first tranche of the Callable Warrants and holadrhe Callable Warrants exercised warrants to lpase
1,571,682 shares of common stock at $1.75 per sbaapproximately $2.7 million in net proceedsAlingust 200¢
we called the second tranche of the Callable Wésrand holders of the Callable Warrants exercisadamts to
purchase 2,204,188 shares of common stock at $Er78hare, or approximately $3.9 million in netqaeds. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, 2,340,412 and 5,91 1r&d@ectively, of the Callable Warrants were @utding.
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In October 2003, in conjunction with the issuantewr Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (therft&eC"),
we granted warrants to purchase 2,367,114 sha@smhon stock to purchasers of the Series C akartise price
of $0.7667 per share. These warrants are exereisail October 15, 2008. As of December 31, 206 2005,
1,398,749 and 2,259,518, respectively, of theseants were outstanding.

In connection with the promissory notes issuedd@3®and 2002, we granted warrants to purchase
867,419 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$6.4496 per share. These warrants are exeleigatl
October 20, 2007. As of December 31, 2006 and 2885414 and 629,436, respectively, of these wignaare
outstanding.

In June 2002, we granted, to outside parties fmiges, warrants to purchase 67,129 shares of canstoek a
an exercise price of $0.13 per share. These warveerte fully exercisable and fully vested on theedsd grant and
shall expire in ten years based on the terms ofvimeants. The fair value of these warrants, totp$8,500, was
recorded as a non-cash stock issuance cost bysusf. Becember 31, 2006 and 2005, zero and 51,83gectively,
of these warrants were outstanding.

In November and December of 2001, we granted wesrtarpurchase 252,721 shares of common stock at an
exercise price of $0.4748 per share to purchasersrcSeries B Convertible Preferred Stock (theri&eB”). From
January to May 2002, we granted warrants to puecth@l9,248 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi
$0.4748 per share to purchasers of the Series &eTWwarrants were exercised during the years dbdeeimber 31,
2005 and 2004.

8. Equity Incentive Plans

We currently have four equity incentive plans (tR&ans”): the 2001 Stock Plan, the 2004 Stock Pila@,2005
Outside Directors’ Stock Plan, and the 2006 Stdek PAll of the Plans were approved by the shamdrsl. Options
are subject to terms and conditions establishettié&¥ompensation Committee of our Board of Dirext@ptions
have a term of ten years and generally vest atatieeof 25% or 33% one year from the grant dateraoathly
thereafter until the options are fully vested otfeee to four years. Certain option awards profideccelerated
vesting if there is a change in control (as defimethe Plans). At the present time, we intendssué new common
shares upon the exercise of stock options. Duhirg/ear ended December 31, 2006, we granted Slaasd award
under the Plans, except for the 2001 Stock Planh¥dean aggregate of 12,625,000 shares of our constock
reserved for issuance as of December 31, 200thd3ktshares, 8,637,322 shares were subject t@aoditsy option
and 2,318,562 shares were available for futuretgmafinshare-based awards.
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A summary of stock options outstanding and changeer the Plans during the periods indicated axsgnted

below.
Shares Weighted Weighted Aggregate
Underlying Average Exercist Average Remaining Intrinsic
Stock Options Price per Share Contractual Term (yrs) Value

Outstanding at January 1, 20 6,392,56° $ 0.3¢
Granted 2,814,241 $ 2.01
Exercisec (506,41 $ 0.3¢
Cancelled/forfeitet — 3 0.0C
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 8,700,39° $ 0.91
Granted 602,50 $ 1.8¢
Exercisec (620,14¢) $ 0.3t
Cancelled/forfeitet (147,000 $ 1.64
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 8,5635,75. $ 1.01
Granted 577,68: $ 2.64
Exercisec (196,15) $ 0.8C
Cancelled/forfeitet (279,96) $ 1.2C
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 8,637,32. $ 1.17 6.7¢  $59.9 millior
Vested and expected to vest in the future at

December 31, 200 8,415,99. $ 1.0¢ 6.7  $58.6 millior
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 6,380,861 $ 0.87 6.4 $45.8 millior
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 4516,28. $ 0.8¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 2,901,98 $ 0.71

The weighted average grant-date fair values obagtgranted during years ended December 31, 2006, 2
and 2004 were $1.57 per share, $1.16 per shar§ladd per share, respectively. As of December 6262
$2.2 million of total unrecognized compensationtsaslated to non-vested stock option awards igeteg to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 1a8syd& he intrinsic value of options exercised dytime years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $34%935,188 and $435,513, respectively. Cash reddioen
stock option exercises for the years ended DeceBhez006, 2005 and 2004 was $156,114, $218,422 and
$197,500, respectively. No tax benefit was realipedhe tax deductions from option exercise ofghare-based
payment arrangements in the years ended Decemh2038, 2005 and 2004.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a Black-Scholes-Mertormoopt
pricing model (“Black-Scholes model”) that uses éssumptions noted in the following table. Expectelatilities
are based on historical volatility of our commoaocétand our peer group. The expected term of optiganted is
based on analyses of historical employee terminatites and option exercises. The risk-free inteedss are
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based on the U.S. Treasury yield for a period sest with the expected term of the option in @ffgcdhe time of
the grant. Assumptions used in the Black-Scholedahaere as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Expected volatility 75.(% 76.(% 100.(%
Average expected term in yei 4.C 4.C 4.C
Risk-free interest rat 4€51% 3% 3.(%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
The following table summarizes information for datgling and exercisable options as of Decembe2®16:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Number Average
Number Contractual Exercise Vested and Exercise
Exercise Price Outstanding Life in Years Price Exercisable Price
$0.06- $0.43 5,413,51. 6.C $ 0.3¢ 4847931 $ 0.3¢
$1.25- $3.50 2,913,06. 82 $ 2.1t 1,267,93¢ $ 2.04
$4.10- $6.78 310,75( 74 $ 4.11 264,99¢ $ 4.1C
8,637,32. 6.6 $ 1.1z 6,380,860 $ 0.87

Restricted stock awardsRestricted stock awards are grants that entidehblder to acquire shares of restric
common stock at a fixed price, which is typicallyminal. The shares of restricted stock cannot b ptedged, or
otherwise disposed of until the award vests anduswested shares may be reacquired by us for ihmalr
purchase price following the awardee’s terminatibservice. Annual grants of restricted stock urtierOutside
Directors’ Stock Plan typically vest in full thedt day the awardee may trade Company stock in kange with
our insider trading policy following the date imnigtetly preceding the first annual meeting of statbrs
following the grant date.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we is30@O0 restricted stock awards under our Outside
Directors’ Stock Plan. As of December 31, 2006s#&h@0,000 outstanding restricted stock awards nemgested.
The grant-date fair value of restricted stock awaphnted during the year ended December 31, 268652844,950
or $2.72 per share. No restricted stock awards geneted in the years ended December 31, 2005@0w 2s of
December 31, 2006, the total unrecognized compiensadst related to unvested shares was $82,50thvd
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 0.4 year.

9. Commitments and Contingencie:

Operating Leases— Our administrative offices and research faeiitare currently located in San Diego,
California. We lease 15,848 square feet of officé eesearch space for approximately $31,000 pethmdvie have
two separate leases for our facilities, which exjpirDecember 2007. In February 2007, we leasediditional
2,540 square feet of office space in the same ingilJ&aommencing on April 1, 2007 and expiring orcB@ber 31,
2007. Additionally we lease certain office equipinender operating leases. Rent expense totaled 29,7
$238,000 and $132,000 for the years ended DeceBih@006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Future minim
payments required under our non-cancelable operigase obligations are $410,000 in the year ending
December 31, 2007.

Material Agreements— During August 2004, we signed an Exclusive Ohisttion Agreement (the
“Distribution Agreement”) with Baxter Healthcare Qoration (“Baxter”) to market, distribute and sdiflenex in
the United States and Puerto Rico. During March620@ entered into a Development and Supply Agreeitiee
“Supply Agreement”) and a First Amendment to thistixg Distribution Agreement with Baxter. Undeetterms
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of the agreements we will supply Baxter the actilarmaceutical ingredient, and Baxter will fill aficish Hylenex
and hold it for subsequent distribution. The Supfdyeement provides for additional product develepin
opportunities that the parties may mutually det¢tdpursue. In addition, Baxter has a right of frefusal on certain
product line extensions and select new products.Hitst Amendment provides for specific and coesist
definitions among the Supply Agreement and DistidduAgreement and modifies various covenants oft&a
relating to the definition of marketing and incrawtad sales costs, including a $3 million annual eapgthe amount
of marketing and incremental sales costs to belpai8axter. In the event that both parties agresdivance to
combined marketing and incremental sales costgdass of the cap, such excess marketing and inotahsales
costs shall be shared equally. On February 13,,2002ntered into an Amended and Restated Exclusive
Distribution Agreement, an Amended and Restateceldgvnent and Supply Agreement and an Enhanze lécens
and Collaboration Agreement with Baxter. See N&eSlibsequent Events.

Effective December 30, 2005, we entered into & BRinsendment to a November 15, 2002 license agreemen
(the “Agreement”) with the University of Connectiddealth Center (“UCHC”). The original license agnmgent
provided for certain payments to be made to UCHEoimection with the development and commerciabnabf
certain products defined in the Agreement. Thet Rirsendment to the License Agreement (the “Firstefwiment)
calls for payments of a one time Supplemental Lseefee of $25,000, a $250,000 Technology Accessafea
Technology Fee of $2,500,000 to be paid to UCH@nnual installments of $250,000 payable in Febreach yez
commencing with 2006 and ending 2015. The first pagments of $25,000 and $250,000 were paid inrdecce
with the original Agreement in March and May 208&pectively. The first $250,000 annual technolfegy
installment was paid in February 2006 in accordamitie the First Amendment. Other terms of the anmeeial
include a termination clause which allows us t@diginue commercialization of certain products cedeunder the
Agreement and to cease making the annual $250800ent with a one time termination fee of $250,00te
annual technology fee payments are recognizedgerese on a straight-line basis.

On December 5, 2006, we entered into a licensealf@borative agreement with F. Hoffmann-La Rocla L
and Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. See NotdD@ferred Revenue — Roche Agreemémnt detailed discussion.

On December 15, 2006, we amended our Commerciglgdgreement (the “Amendment”) with Avid
Bioservices, Inc. (“Avid")that was originally entered into on February 18%20Jnder the terms of the Amendm:
we are committed to certain minimum annual purchasgial to two quarters of forecasted supply dfact
pharmaceutical ingredient (“API”). In addition, Avivill have the right to manufacture and supplyegan
percentage of the API that will be used in our Clase and Hylenex products.

Legal Contingencies— In the ordinary course of business, we may fac®muarclaims brought by third partie
including claims relating to the safety or efficamfyour products. Any of these claims could subjecto costly
litigation and, while we generally believe that heve adequate insurance to cover many differemistgp liabilities
our insurance carriers may deny coverage or oucyphinits may be inadequate to fully satisfy argnthge awards
or settlements. If this were to happen, the payroeahy such awards could have a material advdfset®n our
operations and financial position. Additionally yasuch claims, whether or not successful, couldatgour
reputation and business. Currently we are not ireebin any litigation.
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10. Income Taxes

Significant components of our net deferred tax @saeDecember 31, 2006 and 2005 are shown below. A
valuation allowance of $17.8 million and $11.6 roitl has been established to offset the net defeapedssets as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, as etz of such assets is uncertain.

2006 2005

Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 15,134,000 $ 10,156,00

Research and development cre 2,081,001 1,160,001

Depreciatior 92,00( 56,00(

Other, ne 457,00( 186,00(
Total deferred tax asse 17,764,00 11,558,00
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass (17,764,00) (11,558,00)
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —

The provision for income taxes on earnings sulifpagicome taxes differs from the statutory Fedeatd at
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, due to the follpw

2006 2005 2004
Federal income taxes at 3¢ $(5,016,00) $(4,514,00) $(3,091,00)
State income taxes, net of federal ber (861,000 (775,000 (530,000
Research and development cre (615,000 (573,000 (587,000
Tax effect on no-deductible expenses and otl 286,00( (196,000 108,00(
Increase in valuation allowan 6,206,00! 6,058,00I 4,100,001
$ — 3 — 3 —

At December 31, 2006, we had federal and Califoramanet operating loss carryforwards of approxatat
$37.9 million and $38.5 million, respectively. Tieeleral and California tax loss carryforwards Ww#igin to expire
in 2018 and 2010, respectively, unless previouslized. We also had federal and California reskaucd
development tax credit carryforwards of approxirtya$d .5 million and $1 million, respectively, whietill begin to
expire in 2024 unless previously utilized. Pursuarihternal Revenue Code Section 382, the anrseabfiour net
operating loss carryforwards could be limited by greater than 50% ownership change during angihear
testing period. As a result of any such ownershignge, portions of our net operating loss carryéods are subject
to annual limitations.

11. Related Party Transaction

On December 22, 2006 we entered into a licenseeagget with a related party, Nektar Therapeutics AL,
Corporation (“Nektar”) under which the Company ata a license to certain intellectual propertihtsggand
proprietary technology of Nektar. Nektar’'s Co-foendChief Scientific Officer and Director, Dr. JoRatton, is
currently a member of our Board of Directors. DattBn recused himself from the segments of theouarBoard of
Directors meetings at which this transaction wasuksed, evaluated or approved. We paid NektaD®@5n
January 2007 under the terms of this agreementvarate obligated to make certain payments in thedwpon
achieving certain specified milestones and roysilbie product sales.
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12. Summary of Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

The following is a summary of the Company’s unaediiguarterly consolidated financial data derivearfr
unaudited financial statements included in our @ubrReports on Form 10-Q:

Quarterly statement of operations data for

Quarters Ended

2006 (Unaudited) March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31

Total revenue $ 73,28. $ 11966: $ 36247 $ 426,32
Gross profit $ 5032 $ 103,12: % 6,38« $  73,80:
Net loss $(3,490,19) $(3,232,79) $(3,651,03) $ (4,377,96)
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ (0.06) $ (0.05) 3% (0.06) $ (0.07)

Shares used in computing net loss per shar:
basic and dilute: 60,456,46 61,841,86 62,731,25 65,402,77

Quarterly statement of operations data for

Quarters Ended
2005 (Unaudited) March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31,

Total revenue $ $ 45700 $ 2564« $  55,86:¢
Gross profit $ — 3 24,67¢ $ 15,55¢ % 35,00¢
Net loss $(3,193,07) $(2,868,33) $(3,700,47) $ (3,513,48)
Net loss per share, basic and dilu $ (0.0 % (0.0 % (0.0 % (0.09)
Shares used in computing net loss per shar

basic and dilute: 49,575,49 49,945,46 49,978,69 51,721,37

13. Subsequent Event:

On February 13, 2007, we entered into an Amendddrastated Exclusive Distribution Agreement withx&s
(amending that certain Exclusive Distribution Agremt between the parties dated as of August 131,230
amended on March 24, 2005 and December 8, 200&6) Qtistribution Agreement”); an Amended and Restate
Development and Supply Agreement (amending thaaiceDevelopment and Supply Agreement between the
parties dated as of March 24, 2005) (the “DevelaprAgreement”); and an Enhanze License and Colkttmor
Agreement (the “License” and along with the Digttibn and Development Agreement, the “Agreements”).

Under the terms of the Distribution Agreement, Baxtaid us an initial upfront payment of $10 mifliand,
pending the successful completion of a seriesgilegory and sales events, Baxter may make milegpagyments
which could potentially reach a value of up to $@ilion. In addition, Baxter will pay royalties dhe sales of
products covered under the Distribution AgreemBakter prepaid $1 million of these royalties in neation with
the execution of the Agreements and Baxter wilbbkgated to prepay $9 million of additional royast on or prior
to January 1, 2009.

Under the terms of the Development Agreement, Baxiénow assume all development, manufacturing,
clinical, regulatory, sales and marketing costthefproducts covered by the Distribution Agreement.

Under the terms of the License, Baxter obtainesdddwide, exclusive license to develop and comnadizz
product combinations of rHUPH20, our proprietargorbinant human hyaluronidase, with Baxter hydrefioids
and generic small molecule drugs (with the exceptibcombinations with (i) bisphosphonates, as asl|
(i) cytostatic and cytotoxic chemotherapeutic @gethe rights to which have been retained bylnsaddition,
Baxter will pay royalties on the sales, if anytlod products that result from the collaboration.

In addition, on February 13, 2007, an affiliateBaixter purchased 2,070,394 shares of Halozyme’srcmm
stock for an aggregate of $20 million, or $9.66 gleare, which represents a 25% premium to the geeatiasing
price of our common stock over the 30 days immedigireceding the purchase date.
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1199@®@gming to the Halozyme
Therapeutics, Inc. 2004 Stock Plan, NonstatutooglSOption Agreement with Andrew Kim and assumetioms under Deliatroph
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and the amended and reg@@4dStock Plan, in the Registration Statementn{F8#8 No. 333-133829) pertaining to
the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2005 Outside DinstiStock Plan and the Halozyme Therapeutics,2006 Stock Plan, in the Registration
Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-114776) of Halozymerdpeutics, Inc. for the registration of its comnsbock, in the Registration Statement
(Form S-3 No. 333-120448) of Halozyme Therapeutits, for the registration of its common stock, amdéhe Registration Statement (Form
S-3 No. 333-125731) of Halozyme Therapeutics, flocthe registration of its common stock, prefersgack, debt securities and warrants and
in the related Prospectus of our reports dated Mar@007, with respect to the consolidated finalnsiatements of Halozyme Therapeutics,
Inc., Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. management’ssassent of the effectiveness of internal controlrdirencial reporting, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financighogting of Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc., includedhiis Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the
year ended December 31, 20

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Diego, California
March 5, 2007






Exhibit 23.z

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1199@®@gming to the Halozyme
Therapeutics, Inc. 2004 Stock Plan, NonstatutooglSOption Agreement with Andrew Kim and assumetioms under Deliatroph
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and the amended and reg@@4dStock Plan, in the Registration Statementn{F8#8 No. 333-133829) pertaining to
the Halozyme Therapeutics, Inc. 2005 Outside DinstiStock Plan and the Halozyme Therapeutics,2006 Stock Plan, in the Registration
Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-114776) of Halozymerdpeutics, Inc. for the registration of its comnsbock, in the Registration Statement
(Form S-3 No. 333-120448) of Halozyme Therapeutits, for the registration of its common stock, amdhe registration Statement (Form
S-3 No. 333-125731) of Halozyme Therapeutics, flocthe registration of its common stock, prefersgack, debt securities and warrants and
in the related Prospectus of our report dated Mag;2006, with respect to the consolidated finalnstiatements of Halozyme Therapeutics,
Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) the year ended December 31, 2006.

/s/ CACCIAMATTA ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Irvine, California
March 9, 2007






EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Jonathan E. Lim, Chief Executive Officer of Hayone Therapeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”), do bgreertify in accordance with 18 U.S.C
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Halozyme Therapeutics, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatio any untrue statement of a material fact ot torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfi@ periods presented in this rep

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and han

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the Registrant, including its consolidhgribsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh anc

b) designed such internal control over finahaaorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registaisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusion about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in tegiBrant's internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repost tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Redst’s internal control over financial reportir

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drfthve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetaxanmittee of Registrant’s board of directors jersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refrmahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabirres management or other employees who have His@gn role in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 9, 200

/s/ Jonathan E. Lim

Jonathan E. Lim, M.C
Chief Executive Office






EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, David A. Ramsay, Chief Financial Officer of Halone Therapeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”), do bgreertify in accordance with 18 U.S.C
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Halozyme Therapeutics, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatio any untrue statement of a material fact ot torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlfi@ periods presented in this rep

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Registrant and han

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the Registrant, including its consolidhgribsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh anc

b) designed such internal control over finahaaorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registaisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusion about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in tegiBrant's internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repost tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Redst’s internal control over financial reportir

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drfthve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetaxanmittee of Registrant’s board of directors jersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refrmahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabirres management or other employees who have His@gn role in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 9, 200

/s/ David A. Ramsay

David A. Ramsa
Chief Financial Officel






EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HalozymeeTdpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-K tlee year ended December 31, 2006,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jonathahif, MD, Chief Executive Officer of
the Registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1280adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@rkey Act of 2002, that, to the best of

my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41@% U.S.C. 78m); an

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of the
Registrant

Dated: March 9, 2007 /s/ Jonathan E. Lim
Jonathan E. Lim, M.C
Chief Executive Office







EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HalozymeeTdpeutics, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-K tlee year ended December 31, 2006,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the “Report”), |, David ARy, Chief Financial Officer of the
Registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350d@aspted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanésy@xt of 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41@% U.S.C. 78m); an

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of the
Registrant

Dated: March 9, 2007 /s/ David A. Ramsay

David A. Ramsa
Chief Financial Officel




